
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Friday, 17 May 2024 

Reissued 23 May 2024  

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

e-mail: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Tuesday, 

28 May 2024 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 
 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee (to be appointed at the Annual Council 

meeting on 22 May at 2pm).  

 

 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.1   Election of Chair  

Purpose: 

To appoint a Chair for the Civic Year 2024/25. 

 

Recommendation: 

That a Chair of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee be elected for the 

Civic Year 2024/25. 

 

 

1.2   Appointment of Vice-Chair  

Purpose: 

To appoint a Vice-Chair for the Civic Year 2024/25. 

 

Recommendation: 

That a Vice-Chair of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee be appointed 

for the Civic Year 2024/25. 
 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

To receive any apologies for absence. The quorum for the sub-committee is 4 Members. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 8 April 2024.  

 

5.   Applications for Development (Pages 13 - 66) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Page  Application 

No. 

Address Planning 

Officer 

15-33 23/03261/FUL Barn at Ryehill Farm, 

Kingham.  

James Nelson 

34-38 24/00215/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, 

Freeland.  

Sarah 

Hegerty 

39-42 24/00216/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, 

Freeland. 

Sarah 

Hegerty 

43-55 24/00686/FUL Land And Building (E) 439518 

(N) 226211,Enstone Airfield 

North, Banbury Road 

Enstone 

James Nelson  

Page 2



 

56-65 24/00890/FUL  Stonesfield Sports And Social 

Club, Field Close, Stonesfield 
James Nelson  

 

 

5.1   23/03261/FUL Barn at Ryehill Farm, Kingham. 

 

 

5.2   24/00215/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, Freeland 

 

 

5.3   24/00216/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, Freeland 

 

 

5.4   24/00686/FUL Land And Building (E) 439518 (N) 226211,Enstone Airfield 

North, Banbury Road, Enstone. 

 

 

5.5   24/00890/FUL Stonesfield Sports and Social Club, Field Close, Stonesfield. 

 

 

6.   Allocation of Section 106 funding in Long Hanborough, Oxfordshire (Pages 67 - 72) 

Purpose: 

To enable members to consider competing requests for a sum of money reserved in the 

section 106 agreement associated with application ref   22/01330/OUT and to decide 

which request best mitigates the impact of the development and to allocate the said 106 

monies accordingly. 

 

Recommendations: 

That the Sub-Committee resolves to: 

1. Allocate the funding to whichever of the two claimants it considers best mitigates 

the impact of the development. 

 

7.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers. (Pages 73 - 92) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

8.   Appeal Decisions Report (Pages 93 - 94) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of any appeal decisions. 

 
Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB 

at 2.00 pm on Monday, 8 April 2024 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Jeff 

Haine, David Jackson, Rosie Pearson and Mark Walker. 

Officers:  Joan Desmond (Principal Planner), James Nelson (Senior Planner), Peter Morgan 

(Planners), Rebekah Orriss (Planner), Max Thompson (Senior Democratic Services Officer), 

Anne Learmonth (Democratic Services Officer) and Christine Elsasser (Democratic Services 

Officer).  

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil 

1 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 12 February 2024, were approved and 

signed by the Chair as a correct record, subject to; 

Minute of Outline Planning Application 23/01504/OUT – Councillor Rosie Pearson requested 

that the date of the previous Sub-Committee meeting where the application was considered, 

be amended from August 2024 to August 2023. This was consequently amended by 

Democratic Services. 

Councillor Julian Cooper proposed from the Chair that the minutes of the previous meeting 

held on 12 February 2024 be agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate record, 

subject to the amendment stated by Councillor Rosie Pearson. This was seconded by 

Councillor Mark Walker, was put to a vote, and was agreed unanimously by the Sub-

Committee. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 12 February 2024 as a true 

and accurate record. 

2 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alaa Al-Yousuf, Rizvana Poole and Dean 

Temple.  

3 Declarations of Interest  

Declarations of Interest were received as follows; 

23/03341/FUL Land South West of Radford farm buildings.  

Councillor David Jackson knew the farm worker Tom Warner, however he did not know the 

applicant and had no pecuniary interests, therefore would remain to hear the application.  

4 Applications for Development  

5 23/01637/FUL Charlbury House, Woodstock Road, Charlbury.  

James Nelson, Senior Planner, introduced the application for the demolition of the existing 

dwelling house and erection of replacement dwelling with associated outbuildings and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

landscaping works. The conversion and extension of the existing cottage to form a pool house 

with ancillary shower and changing facilities. The repair and extension of field barn (revisions 

to planning approval 22/02066/FUL to allow for inclusion of new stables and indoor riding 

arena).  

Councillor Peter Kendrick, Chair of the Planning Committee at Charlbury Town Council 

addressed the Sub-Committee with clarification relating to the conservation target area and 

the Neighbourhood Plan.  

The Senior Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The proposal comprised a resubmission of application 22/02066/FUL with equestrian 

complex added to the scheme. 

 The proposed equestrian complex, despite its large scale, was considered appropriate 

for a rural context. 

 The proposed replacement dwelling and adjacent outbuildings would match the 

approved scheme in terms of siting, scale and design. 

 Landscaping would include improving the quality of the land by restoring and enhancing 

the surviving woodland and increasing hedgerow and woodland cover. Enlargement an 

existing spring fed pond and bury overland electricity lines would also be included.  

 2.9 hectares of native woodland would be planted Northwest of the site.  

 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 Given the proposed planting of woodland what timeframe was needed for the growth 

of the trees to mitigate the size of the development. The Senior Planner clarified that 

the applicant would provide comprehensive details of planting which was covered in 

Condition 17. This would ensure the establishment and retention of the woodland and 

would also create a connection to current woodland blocks supporting biodiversity.   

 The Senior Planner clarified that the woodland vegetation would be higher than the 

proposed buildings and would be screened from the South.  

 The condition regarding the access via Stonefield Lane had been strengthened. No 

construction, demolition, equestrian or commercial vehicles would be able to access 

the property via this lane.  

 Clarification on the District Ecologist’s report and the wording used. The Senior 

Planner confirmed that the report covered the previous application however a 

condition had been included which focused on the protection and habitat of species.  

Councillor Jeff Haine proposed that the application be approved in line with Officer 

recommendations.  

The Chair seconded the proposal. This was put to the vote with 4 for the proposal, 1 against 

and 4 abstentions. The vote was carried.   

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1.  To approve the application in line with Officer recommendations. 

 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

 

6 23/03341/FUL Land South West of Radford Farm Buildings, Radford, Chipping Norton.  

Peter Morgan, Planner, introduced the application for the erection of a two bedroom cottage 

for an agricultural worker.  The Planner brought the Sub-Committee’s attention to the 

business plan of which paper copies had been circulated before the meeting started.  The 

business plan had not been included in the application at the time of submission.  

Sam Parsons, the applicant addressed the Sub-Committee and provided clarification regarding 

the information that had not been included and the removal of a caravan that was currently on 

the site.  

The Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 Clarification would be sought over the information that had been received in support 

of the application.  

 The Business case would need to be viable to justify the building of the new dwelling.  

 There were no objections from Enstone Parish Council, the West Oxfordshire District 

Council Drainage Officer, however this was subject to a drainage condition. There 

were no objections from Oxfordshire County Council Highways due to no significant 

impact on the adjacent roads.  

 The proposed dwelling would have adverse impacts on the countryside due to its siting 

and design. 

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to the Parish Council view being 

contrary to the Planning Officers.  

 The application was contrary to policies OS2, OS4 and H2 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 and Officers recommended the application for refusal. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 The Members acknowledged the business plan that had been circulated prior to the 

start of the meeting. 

 The proposed dwelling was for the agricultural worker employed at the farm and it 

was considered that the business case provided justified the need for the new dwelling.  

 The proposed dwelling design was in keeping with the farm complex and would have 

no impact on the surrounding countryside.  

 To include a condition to prevent the use of the proposed dwelling as a rental 

property or holiday let.  

Councillor Mark Walker proposed that the application be approved against Officer’s 

recommendations with conditions to be agreed with the Chair and Local Members 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

This was seconded by Councillor Lidia Arciszewska, was put to the vote and was agreed 

unanimously.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. To approve against Officer’s recommendations with conditions to be agreed with Joan 

Desmond, Principal Planner and the Chair and Local Ward Members. 

 

7 24/00166/FUL Cheorl House, Church Street, Charlbury.  

Rebekah Orriss, Planner, introduced the application for a change of use from office to 

residential use relating to the ground floor of the property.   

The Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The front room was used as an office, the rest of the property was for residential use. 

There were no separate amenities for the office therefore the office was not self-

contained or suitable for commercial use.  

 There would be no external work on the house, the frontage would remain the same.  

 The property was not a listed building, although there were listed buildings surrounding 

the property.  

 The application had been brought before the Sub-Committee due to the officer’s 

recommendations being contrary to the views of Charlbury Town Council.  

 The Charlbury neighbourhood plan policy ECT2 aimed to protect retail, employment 

and services and required evidence to show that business would no longer be 

commercially viable if there was a request to change the use of the premises.  

 The application complied with policies OS2, OS4, E1, EH1, EH10 and EH11 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan and the Planner recommended approval of the 

application.  

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 Concerns that people could buy properties that were once used for commercial use 

and change to residential use. The Planner confirmed that the application before the 

Sub-Committee concerned the loss of a very small commercial space without 

amenities.  

 Would a condition be included to protect the frontage of the shop from being 

changed. The Planner confirmed that there were no changes planned to the front of 

the shop however there could be a condition included if Members requested one.  

 Would a condition be included to protect House Martins that were raised as a concern 

by an objection comment. The Planner confirmed that this could not be applied as the 

application site only related to the ground floor. 

Councillor Lidia Arciszewska proposed that the application be approved in line with Officer’s 

recommendations.  

 

 

Page 8



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

This was seconded by Councillor Jeff Haine, was put to the vote and was agreed unanimously.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application with a condition to retain the shop front. 

8 23/00215/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, Freeland.  

Joan Desmond, Principal Planner, introduced the application for variation of conditions 2 and 3 

of Planning Permission 22/02862/HHD to allow design and material changes.   

Mark Doodles, representing Derek Kelly addressed the Sub-Committee in objection to the 

application.   

The Principal Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 The application had been brought before the Sub-Committee after being called in by 

Councillor Alaa Al-Yousuf regarding the design, massing and neighbouring amenity 

concerns.  

 Permission had been granted for the previous application 22/02862/HHD. 

 The changes relate to front and rear extensions.  The doorway proposed to the front 

would be reduced in width and the width of the front gables would be increased. The 

rear extensions would be increased in width and depth and the material changed from 

timber cladding to brick and render.  The proposed alterations were minor and not 

considered to disrupt the overall proportions of the property or detract from the 

appearance of the street scene.  

 The impact on neighbouring amenity spaces would not have a detrimental impact and 

would not be overbearing and as there would not be an increase in height there would 

be no loss of light.  

 The application was in accordance with policies OS2, OS4, H6 and T4 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 Officers recommended the application for approval.  

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 Concerns regarding the overall impact on surrounding neighbouring amenities.  

 Concerns that approval could set a precedent for future applications as the extension 

work had already been started on the property with reference to application 

22/02862/HHD.  

 Concerns that the applicant had gone against the original planning approval.  

 The application was for minor adjustments and a condition could be considered to limit 

permitted development rights.  

 A site visit would enable members to assess the changes to the permitted scheme.  

Councillor Lidia Arciszewska proposed a site visit for Thursday 23 May 2024 at 10.30am.  

This was seconded by Councillor Julian Cooper, the Chair. This was put to the vote with 7 for 

the proposal and 1 against. The vote was carried.   

 

Page 9



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Conduct a site visit on Thursday 23 May 2024 at 10.30am. 

9 24/00216/S73 Chalfont, 3 Wroslyn Road, Freeland.  

Joan Desmond, Principal Planner, introduced the application for the variation of Condition 2 of 

Planning Permission 23/00124/HHD to allow design changes (retrospective).  

The Principal Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the following points; 

 Permission had been granted for the previous application 23/00124/HHD.   

 The footprint of the building has changed slightly and moved location so that the 

building was closer to the northern boundary.  

 The ridge height increased to 200mm.  

 The change in materials used on the roof from timber shingles to slates. 

 The right-hand side section changed form from a lean-to to a gable end.  

 The Officers recommended the application for approval.  

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 Concerns regarding the significant increase in height and the impact on neighbouring 

amenities. The Principal Planner confirmed that the assessment on the amenity space 

included the proximity and orientation of the adjoining properties; boundary treatment 

and distances.  

 If there was a site visit would the Sub-Committee be able to suspend work on the 

garage until after the site visit. The Principal Planner clarified that officers had found no 

significant harm and even though it would be in the interest of the applicant to cease 

work it might not be possible for the request to be enforced.  

Councillor David Jackson proposed a site visit for Thursday 23 May 2024 at 10.30am.  

This was seconded by Councillor Julian Cooper, the Chair. This was put to the vote with 7 for 

the proposal and 1 against. The vote was carried.   

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Conduct a site visit on Thursday 23 May 2024 at 10.30am.  

10 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers.  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted by the Sub-Committee.  

Councillor Andrew Beany asked for an update on the Mullin’s application.  Joan Desmond, 

Principal Planner advised that the application could be found on the West Oxfordshire District 

Council website. Additionally, the Principal Planner would seek to ensure that  an update was 

provided to all Sub-Committee Members and the Chair. 

 

 

Page 10



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/April2024 

 

 

11 Appeals  Decisions Report.  

The report giving details of Appeal Decisions was received and noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

The Meeting closed at 4.01 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 28th May 2024 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

 

15-33 

 

23/03261/FUL Barn At Ryehill Farm, Kingham 

 

James Nelson 

 

34-38 

 

24/00215/S73 Chalfont 3 Wroslyn Road, 

Freeland. 

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

39-42 

 

24/00216/S73 Chalfont 3 Wroslyn Road, 

Freeland. 

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

43-55 

 

24/00686/FUL Land And Building (E) 439518 

(N) 226211 Enstone Airfield 

North, Banbury Road 

Enstone 

 

James Nelson 

 

56-65 

 

24/00890/FUL Stonesfield Sports And Social 

Club Field Close, Stonesfield 

Witney 

 

 

James Nelson 

 

Page 14



 

Application Number 23/03261/FUL 

Site Address Barn At Ryehill Farm 

Kingham 

Oxfordshire  
Date 14th May 2024 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Churchill Parish Council 

Grid Reference 427012 E       222819 N 

Committee Date 28th May 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Part demolition and change of use of two agricultural barns into Holiday Lets. Conversion of third 

agricultural barn into a leisure facility to service the holiday accommodation. 

 

 

 

Page 15



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr & Mrs P Ambler 

C/o Agent 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

WODC Business Development Please see below comments/recommendations from a visitor 

economy and economic development perspective:  

 

• WODC Tourism Team are focused on the growth of 

sustainable tourism and are therefore supportive of holiday 

accommodation that is sustainably focused and in close 

proximity to train stations, which this application is.  

 

• We would like to see consideration for a safe walking route 

connecting the property to the station and Kingham village, to 

enable visitors to continue their journey to and from the 

property, & their visit overall, sustainably.  

 

• We would like to see an enhanced provision for cyclists than 

currently listed in the application. Facilities could include 

undercover, secure storage for bikes, access to bike repair 

tools, facilities for cleaning bikes and cleaning & drying cycle 

wear. Heath Farm Holidays Cottages at Swerford are an 

exemplar business for cyclist provision.  

 

• We are supportive of the development of accessible 

accommodation and pleased to see that two of the planned 

holiday lets are described as 'designed to provide fully 

comprehensive accessible bedroom & bathroom 

accommodation that will be suitable for disabled users and 

able-bodied users alike'. We would also encourage the 

applicant to ensure accessibility is considered in the designs 

for the planned communal areas/facilities, such as parking, 

pathways and the swimming pool/cafe, as well. A great 

resource for planning an accessible visitor economy business, 

which covers all types of barriers faced by disabled people, is 

the VisitEngland Accessible and Inclusive Tourism Toolkit for 

Businesses.  

 

• The addition of holiday lets to the proposed development of a 

hotel would add to the range of accommodation being offered 

on site, appealing to different markets and demographics. The 

proximity to several wedding venues would also benefit the 

accommodation.  

 

• Most self-catering accommodation businesses in the area have 

a very high percentage of repeat customers. We would 

expect the business to take 2 years to get to an expected 

Page 16



level of 80% occupancy. The expected occupancy level of 80% 

is dependent on the strength of the business' offering and 

marketing, so could be less or, if highly successful, more.  

 

• The potential pricing structure provided is comparable to 

other high quality accommodation providers in the area, 

although consideration should be given to seasonal pricing to 

encourage greater occupancy levels in the shoulder seasons.  
 

Parish Council Objection- Whilst supporting the principal of diversification in farming 

and repurposing of agricultural buildings, and the opportunity for local 

employment, the councillors have concerns about this application.  

Although the original footprint is not being extended, they also have 

concerns about the size of the complex being created, especially with 

the proximity to the Bluewood Park. This proposal would in effect be 

starting the creation of a new village in a rural area which is within the 

AONB, which is something the councillors do not support. There 

would be a considerable increase in traffic through already congested 

villages. The onsite parking seems inadequate - an increase from 6 to 

12 spaces. Would the coffee shop be open to the general public? If so, 

this provision is woefully inadequate.  
 

OCC Highways Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission.  
 

WODC Drainage Confirmation has been received for application 23/03262/CLASSR for 

this address (Conversion of redundant agricultural barn into an 8 

Suite hotel etc) that there is already an existing surface water 

drainage system in place for the barn and there is no proposed 

increase in footprint. If this also applies to the barns under 

23/03261/FUL, the only requirement would also be for the existing 

systems to be surveyed and repaired/renovated as necessary. If there 

is currently no s/w drainage in place, under SUDS hierarchy 

soakaways should be initially considered as a means to dispose of 

surface water. Soakage tests would be required to check whether 

infiltration is adequate and if a minimum 1m clearance between the 

base and water table could be maintained at all times. Soakaways 

should be at located at least 5m from buildings and at least 2m from 

the site boundary. They should be designed to accommodate a 1 in 30 

year storm + 40% climate change allowance. 

 

The site should contain surface water for all return periods up to and 

including the 1 in 100 year + 40% climate change event with no 

property flooding. 

 

An exceedance flow plan should be provided for storm events in 

excess of 1 in 100 yr + 40% cc, based on proposed ground levels and 

directing runoff away from neighbouring properties.  
 

Page 17



Env Health Noise And Amenity No objection in principle to this application. I do have some concerns 

over noise and disturbance if the proposed swimming pool is to be 

open to the public, but not if it is just for use by occupants of the 

holiday lets. 

 

To minimise disruption to any neighbouring residents, I would ask 

that prior to the commencement of any works the applicant submits 

to, and has approved by, the Local Planning Authority a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan. 

 

The plan shall include, but not limited to, details of how noise and 

dust are to be controlled and minimised, proposed hours of work, 

material delivery and storage, contractor parking and welfare, waste 

management and recycling. 

 

Reason: to protect the amenity of the neighbourhood.  
 

Env Health Contamination Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application in 

relation to contaminated land and potential risk to human health.  

 

Given the former agricultural use of the site and the proposed use as 

holiday lets, please consider adding the following condition to any 

grant of permission.  

 

1. No development shall take place until a desk study has been 

produced to assess the nature and extent of any 

contamination, whether or not it originated on site, the 

report must include a risk assessment of potential source-

pathway-receptor linkages. If potential pollutant linkages are 

identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of 

contamination must be carried out in accordance with a 

methodology which has previously been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

results of the site investigation shall be made available to the 

local planning authority before any development begins. If any 

significant contamination is found during the site investigation, 

a Remediation Scheme specifying the measures to be taken to 

remediate the site to render it suitable for the development 

hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 

development begins.  

 

2. The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, shall be fully implemented in accordance 

with the approved timetable of works and before the 

development hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation 

to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On 

completion of the works the developer shall submit to the 

Local Planning Authority a Verification Report confirming that 

Page 18



all works were completed in accordance with the agreed 

details. 

 

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found 

which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional 

measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional 

measures. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

the NPPF.  
 

District Ecologist The Council's mapping system shows previous records for barn owl, 

house sparrow and woodpigeon in the wider landscape and within 

Ryehill farm. In addition, two old pigeon nests were found within the 

open Dutch barn during the PRA survey. In order to protect nesting 

birds during demolition and construction works, a precautionary 

method of working statement is recommended to ensure that birds 

and their nests are appropriately safeguarded. 

  

The planning system should aim to deliver overall net gains for 

biodiversity as laid out in paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 of the revised 

NPPF and local plan policies EH3. The PRA makes suggestions of the 

addition of swallow nest boxes and sparrow terraces as 

enhancements, however, no plans have been provided to support this, 

and therefore an enhancement condition is recommended to ensure 

these new nesting features are secured. 

 

Whilst the PRA report concluded that the barns concerned within 

this proposal hold negligible potential for roosting bats, and no 

evidence found within the barns, there are previous records for 

roosting bats elsewhere on Ryehill farm, and the wider landscape 

offers potential commuting and foraging habitats for bats. Therefore 

the above lighting condition is recommended to ensure that any 

external lighting is sensitively designed.  

 

I note that the application falls within an amber/green impact risk 

zone for great crested newts, as per the district mapping system. 

Given the overall hard standing and surrounding amenity grassland 

and distance from ponds in the wider landscape, it is unlikely that 

GCN would be a constraint to development and therefore do not 

need to be considered further.  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A total of 16 comments in opposition to the scheme have been submitted via the Council's website. 

The objection comments concern the following planning matters relevant to the application:  

 

• Noise and light pollution in open countryside within the Cotswolds National Landscape; 

• Increased traffic; 

• Economic benefits to the area minimal; 

• Overdevelopment of the site which is out of keeping with the area; 

• Proposal incompatible with size of existing farm and may undermine future agricultural business; 

• Landscape and visual harm; 

• Proposal constitutes major development within the CNL; 

• Lack of need for tourism related development; 

• Isolated and inappropriate location; and 

• Impact on wildlife 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The application has been supplemented by a Design and Access and Planning Statement, the key 

points of which are summarised below. This Statement should be read in conjunction with the 

revised Agricultural Diversification Justification Report, which is available to view on the Council's 

website.  

 

3.2 'The barns (positioned to the NE of Ryehill Close) were historically used to house pigs and 

associated agricultural machinery before the farm adapted the business to exclusively arable 

production some years ago. The farm and barns are situated directly adjacent and North of the 

B4450 Bledington-Churchill road. The barns have stood vacant being utilised for general farm storage 

use for several years but are now occasionally used as a workshop for housing and maintaining farm 

machinery that is now redundant. 

 

3.3 The barns are not listed and the site does not sit within a Conservation Area, however full account 

has been taken of the sites' position within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and 

consideration has been given to reducing the impact that the barns have on the wider surrounding 

countryside. 

 

3.4 The application seeks approval for the conversion and change of use of the barns to the highest 

quality tourism provision including Holiday let accommodation, ancillary leisure facilities including 

swimming pool and gym with a supporting farm shop/juice and Coffee bar. 

 

3.5 The proposals compliment the already consented scheme for 4 holiday let units (21/000592/FUL) & 

the Prior Approval submission for an 8-suite hotel to the North of the site which combine to offer a 

viable diversification strategy that will be managed and delivered by the owner and applicant residing 

on site. 

 

3.6 All of the proposals will contribute to the carefully considered farm diversification proposals that are 

proposed by the applicant and a detailed farm diversification report on the full cohesive site prepared 

by Howkins & Harrison is submitted in support of the application. 

 

Page 20



3.7 It is envisaged that the development will operate as a single entity and holiday destination at the 

heart of the popular Cotswolds Outstanding Area of Natural Beauty and will also provide the 

facilities to successfully operate as a certified temporary camping site (28 days/year) to coalesce with 

established and successful local tourist events that grow annually and regularly fall short of the 

growing demand for varied and high-quality local tourist accommodation. 

 

3.8 The proposals seek to maintain the original (but reduced) overall form of the barns/physical mass on 

site and utilise a agricultural palette of profiled metal and timber cladding alongside & new glazed 

apertures that sit entirely within the footprint of the existing barns. The total demolishing of Unit 1 

and the central section of Unit 2 will be utilised for a small courtyard garden ensuring that residential 

'sprawl' is avoided and also to create a private and sheltered outside amenity space for this larger 

Holiday let. Units 3 & 4 adopt a similar design approach with a wrap-around metal cladding and 

glazing set back from the outer gable line to ensure minimal light pollution and to create a covered 

terrace/outside amenity space that can be used in all weather conditions. Unit 5 retains the working 

barn vernacular and is softened by the introduction of Cotswold Natural stone at Ground Floor in 

order to site more comfortably alongside the approved single storey barn conversion immediately 

opposite (Ref; 21/000592/FUL). 

 

3.9 Parking and access for Units 2, 3 & 4 are discretely located within the retained W bay of Unit 2 barn 

which provides shelter from the wind & ensures that the views towards the barn remain agricultural 

in context and ensures that the site remains open & agricultural in aspect. Parking for the remainder 

of the site is proposed in the existing yard being discretely positioned to be out of sight wherever 

possible to avoid residential paraphernalia 'sprawl'. 

 

3.10 The proposals fully accord with WODC Policy, in particular OS2, OS3, OS4, E2 & E3 which detail 

that farm diversification is supportable within the Local Plan utilising non-traditional structures. 

 

3.11 The proposals maintain the aesthetic of this commercial agricultural farm and offer the opportunity 

for a tangible enhancement to the character of the immediate and wider area through the re-

greening of existing hard-standing, the proposed re-wilding and landscape enhancements alongside 

the demonstrable enhancements to the quality of the overall setting. The submitted scheme 

maintains the existing agricultural form in its surroundings and delivers a contemporary residential 

conversion of the highest quality using local and sympathetic materials and in doing so raises the 

standards of contemporary architecture in the local area and beyond. The revised scheme secures a 

significant net gain in landscape and visual impact terms compared to the existing layout and it is 

submitted that the proposed scheme fully accords and meets the requirements of both local and 

National Planning Policy without conflict or contention. We trust that the application will be 

determined accordingly.' 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E2NEW Supporting the rural economy 

E3NEW Reuse of non residential buildings 

E4NEW Sustainable tourism 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

Page 21



T4NEW Parking provision 

BC1NEW Burford-Charlbury sub-area 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for part demolition and change of use of two agricultural barns into 

Holiday Lets and conversion of agricultural barn into a leisure facility to service the holiday 

accommodation at Rynehill Farm, Kingham.  

 

5.2 The proposal relates to four modern agricultural buildings forming part of a farm complex set within 

the open countryside 0.7 miles south-east of Kingham and within the Cotswolds National Landscape 

('CNL').  

 

5.3 Two other agricultural buildings lie within the wider complex but are not included in this application. 

One benefits from an extant consent for conversion to holiday lets (21/00592/FUL) with the 

remaining barn have recently benefited from consent (23/03262/CLASSR) under the provisions of 

Part 3, Class R of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 

Order 2015 for a flexible use initially as a hotel. Officers note that no details regarding the proposed 

operational development to facilitate conversion works have been submitted to date. 

 

Planning History 

 

W96/1133- Erection of dry sow house and service house (approved). 

W96/1825- Erection of weaning house (approved).  

09/1220/P/FP- Construction of new access with entrance gates and track (approved).  

21/00592/FUL- Conversion of redundant agricultural stone barns into 4 self contained holiday let 

accommodation units together with associated works (approved). 

23/03262/CLASSR- Conversion of redundant agricultural barn into an 8 Suite hotel with associated 

parking, reception and Stores and Meeting Room (Prior Approval Approved). 

 

Development Plan 

 

5.4 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the 

local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material 

to the application, and to any other material considerations. In this case, the development plan is the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 ('WOLP'). 

 

National Policy/Guidance 

 

Page 22



5.5 The National Planning Policy Framework ('NPPF') sets out the Government's planning policies and 

how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF advices that the purpose of the planning system is 

to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and sets out that there are three 

dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In essence, the 

economic role should contribute to building a strong, responsive and competitive economy; the 

social role should support strong, vibrant and healthy communities; and the environmental role 

should contribute to protecting and enhancing the natural, built and historic environment. These 

roles should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are mutually dependant.  

 

5.6 At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development and paragraph 11 

advices that for decision-making this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-

to-date development plan without delay. This duty is reflected in WOLP Policy OS1.  

 

5.7 Paragraphs 88 and 89 relate to supporting a prosperous rural economy and outline that decisions 

should enable the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas (including 

through conversion), farm diversification and sustainable leisure developments which respect the 

character of the countryside.  

 

5.8 The NPPF sets out that decisions should recognise that sites to meet local business and community 

needs in rural areas may have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing settlements.  

 

5.9 Section 12 of the NPPF reinforces the fundamental nature of good design to sustainable 

development and states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development' (Para. 131). 

Paragraph 135 is clear that development proposals should function well and add to the overall quality 

of the area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history and create places that are safe, 

inclusive and accessible and have a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.  Paragraph 

139 outlines that 'development that is not well designed should be refused, especially where it fails to 

reflect local design policies'.  

 

5.10 Section 15 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the natural environment. Paragraph 

180 outlines that decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment and 

paragraph 182 outlines that 'great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and 

scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (such as the 

CNL) which have the highest status of protection'.   

 

5.11 Paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 seek inter alia to deliver overall net gains for biodiversity.  

 

5.12 Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the representations 

of interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations for the application 

are: 

 

• Principle 

• Design  

• Landscape and visual impact  

• Highways/accessibility  

• Residential amenity  

• Biodiversity 

• Drainage/flooding  

 

Page 23



5.13 Each will be considered in the following sections of this report. 

 

 

 

Principle 

 

5.14 The starting point in the assessment of the principle of development is WOLP Policy OS2, which 

sets out the general strategy for the location of new development within the District. Policy OS2 

draws a distinction between 'main service centres, rural service centres and villages' and 'small 

villages, hamlets and open countryside'. In this regard, the application site demonstrably occupies an 

open countryside location.  

 

5.15 Policy OS2 sets out that in open countryside locations, appropriate development will be 'limited to 

that which requires and is appropriate for a rural location and which respects the intrinsic character 

of the area'. This is subject to the general principles of OS2 notably that development should:  

 

• 'As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape;  

• Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting 

services and facilities; and  

• In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty.'  

 

5.16 Policy OS2 also outlines that: "Proposals for non-residential development that is regarded as 

appropriate will include:  

 

• Re-use of appropriate existing buildings which would lead to an enhancement of their immediate 

setting, with preference given to employment, tourism and community uses;  

• Proposals to support the effectiveness of existing businesses and sustainable tourism; and  

• Development which will make a positive contribution to farm and country estate diversification' 

WOLP Policy E2 (supporting the rural economy) states: "Development proposals…which make 

a positive contribution to farm or country estate diversification will be supported where they:  

• are supported by or operate as part of and will continue to add value to a viable core 

farm/estate business; and  

• remain compatible and consistent in scale with the farm/estate operation and a countryside 

location; and  

• re-use existing buildings where feasible in accordance with Policy E3."  

 

5.17 WOLP Policy E2 (supporting the rural economy) states:  

 

"Development proposals which are necessary for agricultural production or which make a positive 

contribution to farm or country estate diversification will be supported where they:  

 

• are supported by or operate as part of and will continue to add value to a viable core 

farm/estate business; and  

• remain compatible and consistent in scale with the farm/estate operation and a countryside 

location; and  

• re-use existing buildings where feasible in accordance with Policy E3."  

 

5.18 WOLP Policy E3 (re-use of non-residential buildings) is also pertinent to the principle of 

development. E3 differentiates between traditional and non-traditional buildings and for the purposes 

Page 24



of this application, the buildings subject of this application would be considered 'non-traditional' for 

the purposes of the WOLP. In such circumstances, Policy E3 states that:  

 

"The re-use of non-traditional buildings, including modern farm buildings, for employment, tourism 

and community uses will be supported within or adjoining Service Centres or Villages, or where it 

forms part of an agricultural holding and the proposal is part of a farm diversification scheme under 

Policy E2 or where re-use would address a specific local need which cannot be met in an alternative 

way."  

 

5.19 The supporting text to E3 outlines in paragraphs 6.50 and 6.51:  

 

"The re-use of non-traditional buildings will be limited to more sustainable locations and where they 

contribute to farm diversification in accordance with Policy E2…In some cases where a building is 

situated in an isolated and inaccessible location or where it detracts from the character of the 

surrounding area, re-use may not be appropriate, particularly in the Cotswolds AONB."  

 

5.20 Policy E4 (sustainable tourism) outlines:  

 

"Tourism and leisure development which utilises and enriches the natural and built environment and 

existing attractions of West Oxfordshire to the benefit of visitors and local communities will be 

supported...In small villages, hamlets and the open countryside, new tourism and visitor facilities may 

be justified in the following circumstances:  

 

• where there is a functional linkage with a particular countryside attraction; or  

• the nature of the tourist and visitor facility is such that it could not reasonably be located within 

or close to Service Centres and Villages; or  

• to secure the diversification of a farm enterprise or country estate in accordance with Policy E2; 

or  

• the proposal will re-use an appropriate building in accordance with Policy E3". 

 

5.21 Policy BC1 also provides support for additional small-scale employment opportunities including 

sustainable tourism and rural diversification.  

 

5.22 The proposed development is put forward on the basis of a farm diversification scheme, whereby 

the visitor accommodation would supplement the income of an existing agricultural business. 

Therefore, in order to demonstrate compliance with the policy context as set out, the applicant 

must demonstrate that the proposed diversification scheme would continue to operate as part of, 

and add value to, a viable core farming business whilst remaining compatible and consistent in scale 

with the farming operation and its countryside location. 

 

5.23 In order to demonstrate that the scheme would represent an acceptable farm diversification 

proposal, the applicant has submitted a revised Agricultural Diversification Justification Statement, 

which sets out that the applicant's holding comprises some 446 acres of arable land, with no existing 

diversified income. It is stated that the wider site and buildings was once used to house livestock, 

and have therefore become largely redundant. The submitted accounts detail volatile incomes due 

to grain price fluctuations, with profits ranging from £63,337 in 2020 to £4,023 in 2022. It is also 

stated that loss of subsidy incomes are, and will, continue to increase pressures on incomes in 

coming years. Whilst the core business is therefore in need of a diversified income stream, officer 

consider that it has demonstrated a sufficient scale and viability to support diversification under 

Policy E2.   

Page 25



 

5.24 Policy E2 also requires diversification proposals to remain compatible in scale to the core business. 

In this regard, the submitted report sets out projected cost breakdowns relating to the proposed 

and extant conversions, detailing that should an occupancy rate of 70% be achieved (which officers 

consider is achievable in this location), income after costs and less the cost of borrowing, is likely to 

fall around £48,000 per annum. It is therefore considered that the proposed development, when 

taking into account also the extant permissions for conversion, would remain compatible in scale to 

the core business and its rural location.  

 

5.25 Given the proposal would accord with E2, the re-use of existing buildings is also considered to 

accord with the provisions of Policy E3. Whilst in some cases in the CNL, modern buildings are not 

considered worthy of retention, in this case, the proposal would facilitate the removal of one large 

agricultural building, and the partial removal of a second, which would significantly reduce the overall 

quantum of built form on the site. In addition, whilst the site occupies an open countryside location, 

it is considered relatively accessible owing to its proximity to Kingham Station and network of Public 

Rights of Way, connecting the site to not only the scenic beauty of the CNL but to numerous other 

historic parks, gardens and buildings and villages. Therefore, when read in the context of the 

proposed demolition, will re-use appropriate buildings in accordance with Policy E3. Given the 

scheme is considered to represent an appropriate farm diversification proposal and the re-use of 

buildings accords with E3, the proposal also accords with the requirements Policy E4. As such, the 

principle of part-conversion, part-demolition of the existing modern farm buildings is considered 

acceptable in principle subject to consideration of the remaining matters below.  

 

Design 

 

5.26 WOLP Policy OS4 states 'high design quality is central to the strategy for West Oxfordshire. New 

development should respect the historic, architectural and landscape character of the locality, 

contribute to local distinctiveness and, where possible, enhance the character and quality of the 

surroundings'. Officers also acknowledge the requirements of Policy OS3 with regard to minimisation 

of resource use.  

 

5.27 The proposed works relate to four modern farm buildings of varying scales. The works to each 

building are summarised below with numbering derived from the submitted plans.  

 

Barn 1 

 

5.28 The northernmost barn is a substantial, modern and utilitarian construction (38.5m by 19m 

reaching 5.5m in height). It sits on the edge of the site and is therefore marginally the most 

prominent building in the landscape, in officer's view. This building would be removed in it entirety, 

as secure through planning condition, with landscaping works carried out to restore the land.  

 

Barn 2 

 

5.29 This barn sits centrally in the site and is comparable in scale and appearance to Barn 1, it has a 

marginally greater footprint (40m by 19m) and a height of 7.6m. A central section of this barn would 

be removed (approximately 16m), with the remaining space converted to living space (holiday let) in 

the eastern portion, central garden and parking garage/store to the west. The building would be 

reclad in profiled metal and timber, with minimal openings to side elevations and glazed gable to the 

east with integrated louvres. Solar PVs would also be added. The proposed conversion therefore, 

Page 26



would significantly reduce the footprint of the building, demonstrating a successful contemporary 

design whilst retaining its agricultural character. 

 

Barn 3 

 

5.30 Barn 3 is the smallest of the barns (22m by 10m- 6.9m in height), and is visually contained by the 

adjoining built form, notably Barns 2 and 4, which sit in close proximity. The building is open-fronted 

and lightweight, with and overhang to principle elevation. The building would be enclosed to form 

two holiday let units, again with minimal openings to the front and rear and large areas of glazing to 

side elevations.  

 

Barn 4 

 

5.31 The final building lies in the east of the site, adjacent to Barns 2 and 3. When read in the context of 

the wider site complex, it occupies a central location within the farmstead. The modern metal 

building measures 23m by 18m, reaching a ridge height of 6.9m. The proposed conversion would 

retain the current form and composition of the building to a large extent, with modest openings and 

materials in keeping with the wider site. This building would act as a central 'hub' for the tourism 

complex, hosting a pool, gym and café to serve guests.  

 

Wider site 

 

5.32 The existing access would remain unchanged, with large parking areas available across the site. 

Limited details with regard to landscaping have been provided, however, officers consider that this 

may be adequately addressed through condition.  

 

5.33 Overall, the proposed development is considered to have suitably reflected and retained the 

agricultural character of the complex, whilst removing large amounts of built form and enhancing 

building to be retained through the use of high-quality contemporary materials and a cohesive overall 

appearance. Officers therefore conclude that the application has demonstrated compliance with the 

local and national policy context as set out above, and is acceptable in design terms.  

 

Landscape and visual impact  

 

5.34 The site lies within the CNL, a nationally important designation, where great weight should be 

given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty.  This duty is reflected in Policy EH1 

of the WOLP and the NPPF which require great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Section 245 (Protected Landscapes) of the 

LURA 2023 now places a duty on relevant authorities in exercising or performing any functions in 

relation to, or so as to affect, land in an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, to seek to further the 

statutory purposes of the area. The Cotswolds Conservation Board understand that Natural England 

will shortly publish interim guidance on the application of this change in the statutory duty on 

relevant authorities, which came into effect on 26 December 2023.  The Cotswolds Conservation 

Board's Management Plan and guidance documents are also material considerations in decision 

making relevant to the CNL. For the avoidance of doubt, officers do not consider that the application 

constitutes 'major development' for the purposes of NPPF Paragraph 183.  

 

5.35 The West Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment ('WOLA') identifies the application site within the 

open clay wolds (large scale) character area of the wider Upper Evenlode Valley landscape character 

type. This area is characterised by large-scale, softly rolling productive farmland made up of generally 

Page 27



large-scale arable fields with rectilinear boundaries formed by mainly gappy or tightly clipped hedges 

with few trees. The landscape also displays an open character with high intervisibility. The application 

site, owing the presence of existing buildings, could be considered a detracting feature in this wider 

landscape context, although does not appear alien in an agricultural landscape.  

 

5.36 In terms of views into the site, it is well-contained by existing buildings to the south, and is most 

prominent in views form Public Right of Way ref. 168/8/10, which runs to the west.  

  

5.37 In terms of the landscape sensitivity, any analysis of landscape effects needs to take account of 

magnitude of effect and sensitivity of receiving landscape. In this case, the sensitivity of the receiving 

landscape is high due to its somewhat elevated location within an open, protected landscape. 

However, the effects in this case are considered to be positive when read as a whole, given the 

removal of built form and visual enhancement to retained buildings proposed. The scheme also offers 

opportunities for the reinstatement of landscape features through a forthcoming landscaping 

proposal. With regard to the impact of the scheme upon dark skies, officers note that new openings 

are limited with no rooflights proposed and louvres to restrict spill. Further, measure to control 

external lighting can be controlled via condition.   

 

5.38 In visual impact terms, officers note that the site is highly visible from a nearby Public Right of Way, 

and as such, any adverse visual impacts would arise predominantly to highly sensitive visual 

receptors- such as walkers- who will often be tourists visiting the area on account of its scenic 

landscape qualities. Again however, the scheme would result in a moderate betterment in this regard, 

for the reasons as previously set out. Officers therefore consider that the scheme will conserve and 

subject to the submission of landscaping details as a condition of any consent, result in a modest 

enhancement to the landscape and visual qualities of the area, in accordance with the above policy 

and legislative context.  

 

Highways/accessibility  

 

5.39 WOLP Policy T2 states that all new development 'will be required to demonstrate safe access and 

an acceptable degree of impact on the local highway network'. Policy T3 seeks 'to maximise 

opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public transport'. Policy T4 states that: 'parking in 

new developments will be provided in accordance with the County Council's adopted parking 

standards'. 

 

5.40 In terms of accessibility, the site lies in relatively close proximity to Kingham Station, which offers 

regular passenger services between Worcester and London Paddington. Further, it is well-related to 

a network of Public Rights of Way, which are likely to be well-used by tourists visiting the site. 

Therefore, despite its open countryside location, the site is well connected for a scheme of this type.  

 

5.41 In terms of highway safety, no access changes are proposed and the site would be served by 

adequate parking. The Highways Authority have confirmed that the access is considered safe and 

capable of accommodating the proposed use. The application is therefore acceptable in this respect.  

 

Residential amenity  

 

5.42 WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in WOLP Policies OS4 

and EH8, the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide.  

Page 28



 

5.43 The site lies to the north and north west of existing residential dwellings formerly associated with 

Ryehill House, and has received objections on the grounds of noise and disturbance. Given the 

separation distances between the proposed tourism buildings and residential dwellings (at a minimum 

23m to Rynehill Cottages), the nature of the proposed use and the potential for noise to result from 

existing agricultural activity, officers conclude that there are no amenity grounds that would warrant 

refusal of the application.  

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.44 WOLP Policy EH3 states that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and 

enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity. 

 

5.45 The application is supplemented by a Preliminary Roost Appraisal ('PRA'), which has been subject 

to review by the Council's Biodiversity Officer. The PRA states that two old pigeon nests were found 

during the PRA survey, and as such, precautionary methods of working should be following during 

construction. Negligible potential for roosting bats was found, however, in order to avoid adverse 

impacts on species in the wider area, measure to control external lighting are required as well as 

enhancement features in accordance with Policy EH3 and the NPPF. Therefore, subject to planning 

conditions, the application is acceptable in this respect.   

 

Drainage/flooding   

 

5.46 WOLP Policy EH7 seeks to avoid flood risk to people and property and outlines that 'all sources of 

flooding (including sewer flooding and surface water flooding) will need to be addressed and 

measures to manage or reduce their impacts, onsite and elsewhere, incorporated into the 

development proposal'. In this case, the Council's Drainage Officers have reviewed the proposal and 

concluded that subject to appropriate assessment of the existing system, and any upgrading works as 

necessary being secured via condition, the proposal is unlikely to result in any adverse impact in this 

regard, given its elevated location within Flood Risk Zone 1. The application is therefore acceptable 

in this respect.  

 

Recommendation 

 

5.47 In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 Policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, E2, E3, E4, T2, T3, T4, BC1, EH1, EH3, EH7 and EH8, 

the NPPF 2023 and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide. The application is recommended for 

conditional approval.   

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

Page 29



REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied other than as holiday accommodation 

and shall not be occupied at any time as the main or only residence of any occupier. 

 

REASON: The proposed holiday lets are situated in an open countryside location unsuitable for 

unfettered residential accommodation. 

 

4. That the swimming pool, gymnasium and café/bar building hereby approved shall be operated solely 

in connection with the holiday let units hereby approved as well as that accommodation approved 

under refs. 21/000592/FUL and 23/03262/CLASSR and shall not be open to visiting members of the 

public.  

 

REASON: In order to safeguard the amenity of the area and to ensure that the proposed farm 

diversification scheme remains compatible and consistent in scale with the farm operation and open 

countryside location.  

 

5. No development shall take place until a desk study has been produced to assess the nature and 

extent of any contamination, whether or not it originated on site, the report must include a risk 

assessment of potential source-pathway-receptor linkages. If potential pollutant linkages are 

identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination must be carried out in 

accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the local 

planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is found during the 

site investigation, a Remediation Scheme specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site to 

render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority before any development begins.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity. 

 

6. The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the works the 

developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority a Verification Report confirming that all works 

were completed in accordance with the agreed details. If, during the course of development, any 

contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional measures for 

the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity. 

 

 

7. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. In respect to the protection of residential amenity and the local environment, the CEMP 

shall identify the steps and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and impact 

of noise, vibration, dust and waste disposal resulting from the site preparation, groundwork and 

construction phases of the development and manage Heavy/Large Goods Vehicle access to the site. It 

shall include measures to be employed to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto 

Page 30



the public and any nonadopted highways. Once submitted and approved the details contained in the 

plan shall be adhered to in full.  

 

REASON: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working nearby. 

 

8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the existing surface water 

drainage system serving the site shall be surveyed to determine whether any repairs/renovations are 

required to be undertaken. The results of this survey shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority before any development above slab level takes place. In the event that the Local Planning 

Authority finds that further works are required in order to mitigate the drainage impacts of the 

development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. 

 

REASON: To ensure the future provision for surface water drainage is maintained and/or to ensure 

flooding is not exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, 

National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance).  

 

9. No development shall take place (including vegetation/site clearance) until a Precautionary Working 

Method Statement (PWMS) for nesting birds has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The approved PWMS shall be implemented in full according to the specified 

timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that nesting birds are protected in accordance with the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as 

amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire District Local Plan 2011-2031, and in order for 

the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

10. Within twelve months of the commencement of the development hereby permitted, Barn 1 and the 

central portion of Barn 2 shown to be removed on plans ref. AL(10)002 Rev. E and AL(10)012 Rev. 

C, shall have been demolished and permanently removed from the site.  

 

REASON: In order to safeguard the character and appearance of the area and to ensure that the 

proposed farm diversification scheme remains compatible in scale with the core agricultural business. 

 

11. Before above ground building work commences, other than demolition, a schedule of materials 

(including samples) to be used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the 

approved materials. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

12. Prior to the installation of external lighting for the development hereby approved, a lighting design 

strategy for biodiversity shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 

strategy will: 

 

a) Identify the areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for nocturnal wildlife; 

b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of appropriate 

lighting contour plans and technical specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that 

areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using their commuter route. 

Page 31



 

All external lighting shall be installed only in accordance with the specifications and locations set out 

in the strategy.  

 

REASON: To protect nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), 

Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 of the National Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 

15), West Oxfordshire District's Local Plan Policy EH3 and in order for the Council to comply with 

Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

13. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted, cycle parking facilities shall 

be provided on the site in accordance details that have first been agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority. The cycle parking facilities shall be permanently retained and maintained for the 

parking of cycles in connection with the development thereafter.  

 

REASON: In the interests of promoting sustainable tourism and to ensure a satisfactory form of 

development and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

14. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of a scheme of hard and soft 

landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

scheme shall include:  

 

a) Details of any proposed boundary treatments; 

b) Layout, surfacing and planting details; and 

c) Layout and surfacing of the access track and parking area  

 

The scheme shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved details prior to first 

occupation and thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved scheme. In the event of 

any of the trees or shrubs so planted dying or being seriously damaged or destroyed within 5 years 

of the completion of the development, a new tree or shrub of equivalent number and species, shall 

be planted as a replacement and thereafter properly maintained. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the landscape character and visual appearance of the area.   

 

15. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the provision of integrated 

nesting opportunities for birds (House sparrow terraces and swallow nest cups on the north or east-

facing elevations shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. The details shall 

include a drawing showing the types of features, their locations within the site and their positions on 

the elevations of the building, and a timetable for their provision. The approved details shall be 

implemented before the development hereby approved is first brought into use and thereafter 

permanently retained. 

 

REASON: To provide additional habitat for nesting birds as a biodiversity enhancement, in 

accordance with paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EH3 

of the West Oxfordshire District Local Plan 2011-2031, and Section 40 of the Natural Environment 

and Rural Communities Act 2006.  

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

Page 32



 

If a protected species (such as any bat, great crested newt, dormouse, badger, reptile, barn owl or 

any nesting bird) is discovered using a feature on site that would be affected by the development or 

related works all activity which might affect the species at the locality should cease. If the discovery 

can be dealt with satisfactorily by the implementation of biodiversity mitigation measures that have 

already been drawn up by your ecological advisor and approved by the Local Planning Authority then 

these should be implemented. Otherwise a suitably experienced ecologist should be contacted and 

the situation assessed before works can proceed. This action is necessary to avoid possible 

prosecution and ensure compliance with the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Protection of Badgers Act 

1992 and the Wild Mammals Act 1996. This advice note should be passed on to any persons or 

contractors carrying out the development/works. 

 

Please also be advised that works should not take place that will harm nesting birds from March to 

August inclusive. All British birds (while nesting, building nests and sitting on eggs), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. If birds are 

nesting on/in or within the vicinity of the proposed development, work should be undertaken outside 

the breeding season for birds to ensure their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken 

between August and February, or after the young have fledged and left the nest. 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 14th May 2024 

Page 33



 

Application Number 24/00215/S73 

Site Address Chalfont 

3 Wroslyn Road 

Freeland 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8HJ  
Date 14th May 2024 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Freeland Parish Council 

Grid Reference 440849 E       213904 N 

Committee Date 28th May 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of Planning Permission 22/02862/HHD to allow design and material 

changes 

Page 34



 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Frank Creese 

Chalfont 

3 Wroslyn Road 

Freeland 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8HJ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Having reviewed these retrospective planning applications, Freeland 

Parish Council does have some concern over the increased size of the 

footprint of the dwelling and the alteration in footprint of the garden 

store. 

 

The Parish Council decided not to comment when we reviewed the 

original applications, as it was felt that the possibility of the 

development being overbearing to neighbours was outweighed by the 

fact that the 2 storey section was within the building line of the 

adjacent dwellings, both of which are chalet bungalows and therefore 

also 2 storey. The rear extension and store both being single storey 

would be less intrusive. Therefore our overall conclusion was that the 

original development would not be overbearing. 

 

However, the new application is larger overall, and should this 

version have been submitted originally we would have expressed our 

concerns that the dwelling is overbearing to neighbours. Therefore 

we would ask WODC to take this into consideration when deciding 

these 2 applications.  
 

 2 2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 3 objection comments have been received which are summarised below: 

 

• The above works will be overbearing, there will be loss of light and will overlook into 

the rear of our property 

• Out of character for the area 

• Devalue property 

• Overbearing Impact 

• Devalue property 

• Loss of outlook 

• Loss of privacy 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

The purpose of this application is to regularize the proposal and the clients Contractor has started to 

build the extensions different from the approved drawings.  

Page 35



 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T4NEW Parking provision 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The application seeks permission for to vary conditions 2 and 3 of Planning Permission 

22/02862/HHD to allow design and material changes.  

 

Background Information 

 

5.2 The application is brought before Members of Uplands Area Sub Planning committee after being 

called in by Cllr Dr Alaa Al-Yousuf over design, massing and neighbouring amenity concerns. 

 

5.3 The site is located in a residential area of Freeland and it not in an area of special designated control. 

The area is not typified with one specific house type or material however the neighbouring 

properties either side are both single or one and half storey bungalows which have both been 

extended in various ways including front extension and also raising of the roof.  

 

5.4 The property is a detached single storey bungalow dwelling with a rear conservatory and is 

constructed of Buff brick and white render under a tile roof. The dwelling sits on a relatively large 

plot which is set back from the front of the plot by approx. 22m and has a staggered build line from 

the adjacent properties.   

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Siting, Design and Form 

• Neighbouring amenity 

 

Principle 

 

5.6 The principle of development has already been established by permission 22/01680/HHD therefore 

this will not be assessed as part of this application.  

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.7 The key differences of this application to what has already been permitted are stated within the 

submitted planning statement: 

 

Rear extension: 

• Width increase by 230mm approx. 

• Depth increase by 510mm on the left and 765 on the right approx. 

Page 36



• left side of the extension has changed material from timber cladding to brick and render. Parapet 

height is as approved. 

 

Front extension: 

• Proportion of the widths changed, front door 300mm shorter and the gables increased by 

300mm each." 

 

5.8 The proposed alterations are minor and are not considered to disrupt the dwelling's overall 

proportions or detract from the appearance of the streetscene.  

 

5.9 The change in materials are to the rear and are still considered to be consistent with the overall 

appearance of the property.  

 

5.10 Officers therefore consider the proposed acceptable in this regard.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.11 Similar to previous applications, the impact on neighbouring amenities has been thoroughly 

assessed. The rear extension, closest to neighbouring properties (No 1 Wroslyn Road and Pembroke 

House), extends an additional 51cm further into the amenity space without an increase in height. 

Although this extension will be visible from within the neighbouring properties amenity spaces, 

officers do not believe it will have a detrimental impact in terms of being overbearing or loss of light, 

especially considering the single-story nature of the extension.  

 

5.12 Given the staggered nature of the dwellings the front additions will not have an impact on the 

neighbouring properties.  

 

5.13 As with the previous permission conditions have been applied to ensure the sill of the rooflights is 

1.7m above finished floor level to ensure no overlooking from these windows. Also permitted 

development rights have been removed to ensure neighbouring amenity is maintained.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.14 Officers note within an objection comment that the proposed will devalue their property. This is 

not a material planning consideration and therefore does not form part of the assessment for the 

application.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.15 In light of this assessment, taking in consideration the design, neighbouring amenity and layout, this 

proposal is considered to be acceptable and would accord with policies OS2, OS4, H6 and T4 of the 

adopted Local Plan 2031, relevant sections from the NPPF and West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016. The application is thus recommended for approval. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of planning permission ref: 22/02862/HHD issued 11.01.2023.  

 

Page 37



REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2.  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification) no additional windows/rooflights shall be constructed in the side and 

rear elevation(s) of the building. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent property. 

 

5. Notwithstanding any indication given on the plans hereby permitted, the 3 rooflights in the rear 

facing elevation(s) shall have a minimum internal cill height of 1. 7 metres above finished floor 

level and shall thereafter be retained as such. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent property. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Hegerty 

Telephone Number: 01993 861713 

Date: 14th May 2024 

Page 38



 

Application Number 24/00216/S73 

Site Address Chalfont 

3 Wroslyn Road 

Freeland 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8HJ  
Date 14th May 2024 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Freeland Parish Council 

Grid Reference 440849 E       213904 N 

Committee Date 28th May 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 23/00124/HHD to allow design changes (retrospective) 

 

Page 39



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Frank Creese 

Chalfont 

3 Wroslyn Road 

Freeland 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8HJ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Having reviewed these retrospective planning applications, Freeland 

Parish Council does have some concern over the increased size of the 

footprint of the dwelling and the alteration in footprint of the garden 

store. 

 

The Parish Council decided not to comment when we reviewed the 

original applications, as it was felt that the possibility of the 

development being overbearing to neighbours was outweighed by the 

fact that the 2 storey section was within the building line of the 

adjacent dwellings, both of which are chalet bungalows and therefore 

also 2 storey. The rear extension and store both being single storey 

would be less intrusive. Therefore our overall conclusion was that the 

original development would not be overbearing. 

 

However, the new application is larger overall, and should this 

version have been submitted originally we would have expressed our 

concerns that the dwelling is overbearing to neighbours. Therefore 

we would ask WODC to take this into consideration when deciding 

these 2 applications.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 4 objection comments have been received which are summarised below: 

 

• The above works will be overbearing, there will be loss of light and will overlook into 

the rear of our property 

• Out of character for the area 

• Devalue property 

• Overbearing Impact 

• Devalue property 

• Loss of outlook 

• Loss of privacy 

• sets a precedent for similar development in neighbouring properties. 

 

1 neutral comment was also received:  

With regret we feel that this build has commenced with changes to the original plans. Therefore this 

leaves a precedence for others to build what they like after plans have been submitted. 

 

Page 40



3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The purpose of this application is to regularize the proposal and the clients Contractor has started 

to build the extensions different from the approved drawings.  

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The application seeks permission for to vary condition 2 of Planning Permission 23/00124/HHD to 

allow design changes (retrospective).  

  

Background Information 

 

5.2 The application is brought before Members of Uplands Area Sub Planning committee after being 

called in by Cllr Dr Alaa Al-Yousuf over design, massing and neighbouring amenity concerns. 

 

5.3 The site is located in a residential area of Freeland and it not in an area of special designated control.  

The property is a detached single storey bungalow dwelling with a rear conservatory and is 

constructed of Buff brick and white render under a tile roof. The dwelling sits on a relatively large 

plot which is set back from the front of the plot by approx. 22m and has a staggered build line from 

the adjacent properties. 

  

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Siting, Design and Form 

• Neighbouring amenity 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 The principle of development has already been established by permission 23/00124/HHD therefore 

this will not be assessed as part of this application.  

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.6 The key differences of this application to what has already been permitted are stated within the 

submitted planning statement: 

 

• The foot print proportion has changed slightly and moved location. 

• The right hand side section has changed form from a lean-to to a gable end. 

• A brick plinth has been incorporated. 

• roof finish changed from timber shingles to slates 

Page 41



• Eaves height is as approved 

• Ridge height has increase by 200mm 

 

5.7 The length of the garage remains as approved however its location on the plot has brought it closer 

to the northern boundary (approx. 1.7m separation distance). The depth of the building has 

increased by approx. 60cm extending towards the host dwelling and as noted above the ridge has 

increased by 20cm as a result. The proposed alterations are considered to be minor and the 

building still remains ancillary to the host dwelling.   

 

5.8 The change in materials are considered acceptable and of high quality and suitable for the building 

and the wider area.  

 

5.9 Officers therefore consider the proposed acceptable in this regard.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.10 Similar to previous applications, the impact on neighbouring amenities has been thoroughly 

assessed. As highlighted above the garage is now sited 1.7m from the boundary with Pembroke 

House to the north and is immediately adjacent to the shed with the amenity area of this property. 

The change in position on the plot although making the garage slightly more visible then previously 

approved is not considered to have such a detrimental impact in terms of being overbearing or loss 

of light to warrant refusal, especially considering the orientation of the building and its single-story 

nature of the building.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.11 In light of this assessment, taking in consideration the design, neighbouring amenity and layout, this 

proposal is considered to be acceptable and accords with policies OS2, OS4, H6 and T4 of the 

adopted Local Plan 2031, relevant sections from the NPPF and West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016. The application is thus recommended for approval. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Hegerty 

Telephone Number: 01993 861713 

Date: 14th May 2024 

Page 42



 

Application Number 24/00686/FUL 

Site Address Land And Building (E) 439518 (N) 226211 

Enstone Airfield North 

Banbury Road 

Enstone 

Oxfordshire 

  
Date 14th May 2024 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 439518 E       226212 N 

Committee Date 28th May 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of detached, single and two storey viewing/instruction facility, including associated offices for 

staff and flying school users, wc facilities and garage for fire and rescue vehicle. 

Page 43



 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Tom Gilbert 

Road Through Enstone Airfield 

Enstone Airfield 

Enstone 

Oxfordshire OX7 4NP 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Adjacent Parish Council No Comment Received.  
 

Enstone Aerodrome Oxfordshire Sportflying Ltd (OSF) objects to the full planning 

proposal 24/00686/FUL on the grounds stated below. The objection 

includes a short explanation of the negative effects of the proposal. 

This is to give some understanding of the issues, perhaps less 

prominent in this application than just the building, but highly 

significant to other users of the more substantial part of Enstone 

Aerodrome/Airfield and local residents in the area.  

 

Should the Application not be rejected (after clear demonstrated due 

diligence by Officers of the Council on the points raised, i.e. not just 

the building itself), the Planning Committee is requested to ensure, as 

a minimum, that "Planning Conditions" are applied where requested 

and appropriately enforced to mitigate the foreseen negative impacts.  

 

There appears to be several matters not addressed and/or inaccurate 

statements/drawings by the Applicant in this current submission, 

which OSF objects to. These broadly relate to: -  

 

• Certain Prohibition Provisions to Build on Land Purchased by 

the Applicant.  

• Land Ownership, Boundaries & Access to the Applicant's site.  

• Access Rights through the Applicants Site  

• Reports potentially conveying information/impression as 

though such information is in regard to the whole 

Aerodrome/Airfield rather than just the defined north-side 

grass area.  

• Potential mis- interpretation/assumed approval of the Civil 

Aviation Authority (CAA).  

• A Lack of Information on the level of increased aerial activity 

by visitors that a building facility will encourage, causing 

further local public & neighbourly concern/nuisance.  
 

Civil Aviation As with previous commentary from ourselves on the proposal, the 

AAT sought clarification that the applicant does not wish to utilise a 

new Air Ground Communication Service (AGCS, a form of Air Traffic 

Service) within their new building, which would interfere with 

established stakeholder provision of this service already on the site. 

Page 44



Provided this is not the case, the AAT has no further comments on 

the application at this time.  
 

OCC Highways Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission.  
 

WODC Drainage No objection subject to condition.  
 

Oxford London Airport No Comment Received.  
 

Parish Council Enstone Parish Council objects to this planning application for the 

following concerns:- 

 

The Parish Council is keen to support local businesses and has no 

objection to the look of the building. However, the following issues 

need to be addressed:- 

 

1. ACCESS - Does the access come out onto The Green Lane 

and what are the access rights across the area? If this is the 

case, this access does not belong to the applicant. 

Clarification is required from the Highways Department. The 

Parish Council requests a site visit from the Highways 

Department to also clarify that the entrance being used is 

safe. 

 

2. BOUNDARY DISPUTE - Reading comments from other 

Consultees, the boundary dispute appears to be unresolved 

and this dispute must be resolved before any decision is 

made. 

 

 

3. UTILITIES - These do not appear to be fully available on site. 

 

4. AIR TRAFFIC - How much air traffic will be involved on a day 

to day basis - will this be increased as a result of this planning 

application? This needs to be clarified as local residents are 

fearful of the increase in air and noise pollution. A decision on 

the application cannot be made without this information. The 

Parish Council understands that the north side strip of the 

airfield has no restrictions. Could this please be clarified - or 

does it operate under the same restrictions as the other 

operators on the airfield which is 200 flights a day, 40 per 

hour with restricted times? 

 

5. LEGAL REPRESENTATION - The Parish Council requests 

legal representation at the Uplands Committee Meeting so 

that questions can be answered in the correct format. 

 

6. Many comments of support come from people who do not 

Page 45



live in the Parish of Enstone and they would be unaffected by 

the air and noise pollution.  
  

 

Adjacent Parish Council No Comment Received.  
 

3 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

3.1 A total of 28 objection and 95 support comments have been received. The following matters are 

covered.  

 

Objection Comments  

 

• Noise pollution and associated impacts of intensifying existing use; 

• Piecemeal approach to development under the applicant's ownership and alleged breaches of 

planning control; 

• Infringement on private access rights; 

• Landscape and ecological impacts; 

• Need to restrict flight movements; 

• Lack of detail in the submission; and 

• Lack of need/excessive scale 

 

Support Comments 

 

• Development needed to improve poor standard of existing facilities and safety;  

• Appropriate scale and design; 

• The proposal would support the existing aviation use and local businesses; 

• No significant change in movements would result from the proposal; 

• Removal of existing cabins and consolidation into purpose built facility would improve the 

appearance of the site; 

• No ecological impact; 

• No impact on highways network; 

• Improve safety facilities; 

 

 

4 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

4.1 A Planning Statement has been submitted in support of the application, the key points of which are 

summarised below.  

 

4.2 'The proposal arises out of the main requirement to improve the safety of the operation of Enstone 

Airfield. The CAA have identified that improvements are necessary at the Airfield in order to provide 

for a better and safer environment for resident pilots, visiting pilots, instructors, staff and visitors. 

 

4.3 The new building would, primarily, provide for a viewing/instruction facility that would allow for sight 

of the entire grass runway and airfield area. At the same time, and in a linked regard, it would also 

provide for a dedicated office and flight planning space within it to allow pilots and instructors to 

prepare properly on a pre-flight basis. 

 

Page 46



4.4 These are vital facilities urgently needed for the improved safety and best operation of the Airfield. 

 

4.5 It would provide dedicated archive storage in connection with the proper maintenance of aircraft, 

another matter that the CAA identified as being important to the safer functioning of the Airfield. 

 

4.6 It would also deliver purpose provided welfare facilities for the first time on site. Additionally, the 

new building would become the new front of house to the flying school and provide an improved, 

professional appearance for the business, assisting them to maintain better the existing business and 

retain its existing customers. 

 

4.7 Given its close relationship to the existing range, height and form of buildings, and its underpinning 

safety needs, the proposed building could not be designed and located in a better position in relation 

the built and contextual circumstances of the Airfield site. 

 

4.8 The position of the new building has also been carefully considered in order to minimise any 

potential outside landscape impact. It would sit within, surrounded and framed by the existing range 

of hangars and other commercial buildings. It would not rise above them nor stand out isolated from 

them. Indeed, in long views into the site from the nearest public vantage, it would be difficult to read 

it at all in its context. 

 

4.9 The proposal represents a most carefully conceived development that is produced fully mindful of its 

overall site and wider landscape context.  

 

4.10 There are a raft of planning policies at both national and local level that combine in positive support 

of the proposal. Enstone Airfield, Enstone, OX7 4NP Enstone Airlines Limited Page 11 of 12 

  

4.11 Importantly, it would deliver identified and required improvements to the safer operation of the 

Airfield. Indeed, the Civil Aviation Authority support the proposal.  

 

4.12 It would also deliver significant improvements to the existing flying school business and facilities 

generally at the Airfield.  

 

4.13 The accompanying LVIA demonstrates that the proposed siting and form of the new building would 

not cause any material impact to local landscape character nor visual environment impact.  

 

4.14 The proposal is also of course an identified form of sustainable development in itself, where a 

positive presumption in favour of such development exists.  

 

4.15 Government advice requires local planning authorities to apply its policies in a positive and flexible 

way, in order to support business related development, and the proposal as submitted, is just the 

sort of development this advice contemplates.  

 

4.16 Indeed, the Council's officers positively supported this proposal previously, and now with the red 

lined land ownership dispute issue resolved in the submission of the application on this occasion, 

then it is reasonably held that the Council's officers will remain in support of the proposal once again.  

 

4.17 In all of these circumstances, it is very much hoped that the submitted application can be approved 

and planning permission granted as applied for.' 

 

 

Page 47



PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E1NEW Land for employment 

E2NEW Supporting the rural economy 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH8 Environmental protection 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the erection of detached, single and two storey 

viewing/instruction facility, including associated offices for staff and flying school users, WC facilities 

and garage for fire and rescue vehicle at Land and Building (E) 439518 (N) 226211, Enstone Airfield 

North, Banbury Road, Enstone. 

 

5.2 The application site does not lie within any areas of specially designated planning control and lies 

adjacent to a range of hangar/warehouse buildings associated with the use of the land as an active 

airfield. 

 

5.3 The application is brought before Members due to a conflict between officer recommendation and 

the views of the Enstone Parish Council, who have objected to the application.   

 

5.4 The scheme is a resubmission of application ref. 23/01569/FUL, which was withdrawn following 

deferral of the application at this Committee in December 2023. The red-line boundary has been 

amended to ensure that the entire site lies within the applicant's land ownership. Otherwise, the 

application is unchanged.  

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

5.5 Enstone Airfield has an extensive planning history, not all of which is directly relevant to this 

application. Recent applications relating to the application site and adjacent land are cited below.  

 

13/0394/P/FP- Erection of new aircraft hangar for storage and maintenance. Approved.  

 

21/00879/FUL- Extension of existing aircraft maintenance hangar to form 'lean to' hangar for indoor 

aircraft maintenance (Retrospective). Approved.  

 

21/01303/FUL- Erection of Hangar (Retrospective). Approved. 

 

21/02022/FUL- Provision of car park to the North side of maintenance hangar accessed from 'Green 

Lane' part retrospective. Approved. 

  

21/03722/FUL- Erection of a detached building to provide administration, welfare and storage 

facilities for aircraft maintenance business, flying school and resident pilots. Withdrawn.  

Page 48



 

22/01915/FUL- Erection of a detached building to provide administration, welfare and storage 

facilities for the aircraft maintenance business, flying school and resident pilots. Refused.  

 

Development plan 

 

5.6 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the 

local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material 

to the application, and to any other material considerations. In this case, the development plan is the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 ('WOLP'). 

 

5.7 Taking into account planning policy, history and the representations of interested parties, your 

officers consider that the key considerations in this assessment are:  

 

• Principle 

• Siting, Scale and Appearance 

• Landscape and Visual Impact 

• Neighbourliness Impact 

 

5.8 Each will be fully considered in the following sections of this report.  

 

Principle 

 

5.9 The starting point in the assessment of the principle of development is WOLP Policy OS2, which 

sets out the general strategy for the location of new development within the District. Policy OS2 

draws a distinction between 'main service centres, rural service centres and villages' and 'small 

villages, hamlets and open countryside'. The application site sites in a somewhat isolated location, 

which for the purposes of Policy OS2, is considered the open countryside.  

 

5.10 WOLP Policy OS2 outlines that:  

 

"Development in the small villages, hamlets and open countryside will be limited to that which 

requires and is appropriate for a rural location and which respects the intrinsic character of the area. 

 

5.11 Proposals for non-residential development that is regarded as appropriate will include: 

 

• Proposals to support the effectiveness of existing businesses".  

 

5.12 Policy E1 of the WOLP states that: "proposals to improve the effectiveness of employment 

operations on existing employment sites will be supported where commensurate with the scale of 

the town or village and the character of the area. This may include redevelopment, replacement 

buildings or the expansion of existing employment uses." 

 

5.13 Policy E2 of the WOLP states that: "in rural locations such as this new and replacement buildings 

will be allowed where they meet a specific business need which cannot otherwise be met in a more 

sustainable location. It goes on to say that any new building(s) must be suitably located for the scale 

and type of the proposed use and have regard to the level of accessibility to settlements, facilities and 

services and impact on the character and amenity of the area." 

Page 49



 

5.14 In this case, officers recognise that the character of the area is dominated by Enstone Airfield, 

where low-lying, hangar-type buildings dominate the built form. The proposal would relate to an 

established flying school and provide a viewing facility allowing sight of the entire related runway. A 

control office and planning space for pilots/instructors would also be provided as well as storage and 

garage functions. An existing toilet building and flying club portacabin, which are currently relied upon 

to provide facilities, will be removed as part of the scheme. Officers are therefore satisfied that the 

proposed building is reasonably required to support the operation of the site.   

 

5.15 WOLP Policy OS2 also sets out a series of general principles with which all development should 

comply. Those relevant in this case are that new development should:  

 

• Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential 

cumulative impact of development in the locality;  

• Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the 

character of the area; 

• Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing 

occupants;  

• As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; and  

• Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment 

 

5.16 As such, the principle of development to support the established lawful use of the land is 

considered acceptable subject to assessment against the above general principles with regard to 

design, landscape impact, neighbourliness and other relevant material considerations.   

 

Siting, Design and Appearance 

 

5.17 WOLP Policy OS4 states that new development should respect the historic, architectural and 

landscape character of the locality. Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (' NPPF') 

reinforces the fundamental nature of good design to sustainable development and states that 'good 

design is a key aspect of sustainable development' (Para. 131) and 'development that is not well 

designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies' (Para. 139). The 

general principles of WOLP Policy OS2 require all development to 'be of a proportionate and 

appropriate scale to its context' and 'form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of 

development and/or the character of the area'. 

 

5.18 The proposed building would be sited 6 metres (m) south of an existing maintenance hangar 

(extended under ref. 21/00879/FUL) on an area currently laid to grass. The building would be set 

over a linear plan with main block of 15m by 7.5m with side element comprising garage with viewing 

terrace above. The building would take a duo-pitched form set over two stories with glazed cross 

gable and four rooflights. The ridge height of the building would be 6.3m with an eaves measurement 

of 2.6m. The building would be clad in dark green profiled steel.     

 

5.19 The proposed building would exhibit a fairly utilitarian design akin to existing development in the 

locality, using materials in keeping with adjacent built form. In terms of siting, the building would be 

well-related to existing built form, with its siting influenced by the need to view the existing runway 

from the upper floor. Officers therefore consider that, on balance, the building would form a logical 

complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and the character of the area. The 

landscape and visual impact of the proposal is considered in the following section of this report.   

Page 50



 

Landscape and Visual Impact 

 

5.20 WOLP Policy EH2 deals with landscape character and is also directly relevant in this case. It states:  

 

'The quality, character and distinctiveness of West Oxfordshire's natural environment, including its 

landscape, cultural and historic value, tranquillity, geology, countryside, soil and biodiversity, will 

be conserved and enhanced. New development should conserve and, where possible, enhance 

the intrinsic character, quality and distinctive natural and man-made features of the local 

landscape'. 

 

5.21 The supporting text to Policy EH2 is at paragraphs 8.5-8.11. Paragraph 8.6 states: 

 

'The West Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment together with guidance in the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide SPD, the Cotswolds AONB Landscape Character Assessment, Strategy and Guidelines, 

detailed appraisals of the landscape setting of the main towns (undertaken to inform strategic site 

allocations), the Historic Landscape Character Assessment (HLC) for Oxfordshire and the 

Oxfordshire Wildlife and Landscape Study (OWLS), should be used to inform development 

proposals and to ensure they respect the distinctive landscape character areas'. 

 

5.22 The West Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment 1998 ('WOLA') is listed in the supporting text to 

WOLP Policy EH2 and forms a material consideration in this assessment. In terms of the existing 

landscape character of the area, the application site lies within the 'Enstone Uplands' Character Area 

('LCA') as identified in the WOLA and within the 'Airfields and MOD Land' Landscape Type ('LT'). 

 

5.23 The WOLA describes the key landscape and visual features of the LCA as: "dominated by its 

limestone geology, forming the typically largescale, open and elevated landscape of the limestone 

wolds. However, there is a sharp contrast between this and the heavily wooded and enclosed 

parkland and estate character around Heythrop House which dominates the northern part of the 

plateau and the minor river valleys." 

 

5.24 At a granular level, the WOLA then lists characteristics of the LT as including: 

 

• active or disused airfield sites that typically occupy flat, exposed and prominent locations;  

• open, expansive and bleak character with very weak landscape structure;  

• visually prominent buildings and features (e.g. large hangars, sheds, high security fencing, aircraft 

etc.)  

• air of dereliction and neglect on disused sites;  

• high intervisibility. 

 

5.25 Officers consider that the application site shares these characteristics as it is clearly within the 

Airfield and within an elevated position within the landscape.  

 

5.26 Any analysis of landscape effects needs to take account of magnitude of effect and sensitivity of 

receiving landscape. The WOLA outlines that Enstone Airfield itself is identified as 'potentially more 

tolerant of development but prominent plateaux location and rural context are limiting 

factors...development should be set within a strong landscape infrastructure to minimise landscape 

and visual impacts...the introduction of urbanising influences (e.g. style of buildings) would be 

potentially damaging to the rural landscape character of the surrounding landscape'.  

 

Page 51



5.27 The proposed development would be set against the backdrop of existing built form, largely of low-

lying and utilitarian character with 'Apple Pie Wood' providing a strong landscape structure to the 

north of the Airfield. To the south of the site, lie three runways and a generally open area of 

improved grassland and hardstanding. Officers acknowledge that the opportunities for additional 

screening within the applicant's landownership are extremely limited by the nature of the land use.  

 

5.28 In visual impact terms, officers consider that the main affected public viewpoints would be to the 

south and south east of the site as set out in the LVIA accompanying the application. The proposed 

building would be located in close proximity to existing built form and would be modest in terms of 

height and viewed with the backdrop of existing built form and mature woodland to the north. 

Further, the proposed amended plans have addressed officers' concerns regarding the character and 

appearance of the building through removing dormer windows, an overtly residential feature. As 

such, the building would appear in keeping with the general character and appearance of existing 

buildings and would not result in a significant urbanising impact in visual terms. Officers are therefore 

satisfied that the proposed development would accord with WOLP Policy EH2 and the guidance 

contained in the WOLA and NPPF and is therefore acceptable in this regard.     

 

Neighbourliness 

 

5.29 WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in WOLP Policy OS4, 

EH8, the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide.  

 

5.30 The application has attracted opposition of the grounds of increased noise and disturbance that 

may result from the development of facilities at the Airfield. Your officers consider that the Airfield is 

a long-standing land use, the operation of which necessitates some relatively low-level noise 

disturbance. The number of aircraft movements at the Airfield are controlled by planning conditions 

attached to historical consents. Your enforcement officers have undertaken monitoring of the site 

during the past few years and officers understand that the Airfield operates below the number of 

movements permitted. As such, officers consider that given the relevant conditions would remain in 

place, and there appears capacity to accommodate a marginal increase in movements that could 

theoretically result from the proposal over time, there is no reason to conclude that the proposed 

development would adversely impact the amenity of nearby residents.   

 

Response to Objection Comments 

 

5.31 Objection comments raise the issue of emissions and climate change. However, officers do not 

consider that such concerns would warrant refusal of the application given that the NPPF recognises 

the 'importance of maintaining a national network of general aviation airfields, and their need to 

adapt and change over time - taking into account their economic value in serving business, leisure, 

training and emergency service needs, and the Government's General Aviation Strategy' (Para. 110 

(f)).   

 

5.32 Objection has also been raised on the grounds of rights of access. Officers consider that this is a 

civil legal matter and would not warrant refusal of the application. In addition, officers do not 

consider that the planning history at the site provides any reason to refuse the application.  

 

 

 

Page 52



Other Matters  

 

5.33 The site lies within Flood Risk Zone 1 in an area at very low risk from fluvial flooding and the 

Council's Drainage Officers have raised no objection to the application subject to the imposition of a 

pre-commencement surface water drainage condition. Officers are therefore satisfied that the 

scheme will be required to demonstrate how surface water will be adequately managed prior to 

construction.   

  

5.34 There are considered to be no ecological constraints to the scheme given the application site is laid 

to grass with active use by planes and supporting activity.  

 

5.35 No impact on the adjacent highway network is identified. 

 

Recommendation 

 

5.36 In light of this assessment, the application is considered to accord with WOLP 2031 Polices OS1, 

OS2, OS4, E1, E2, EH2 and EH8 the NPPF 2023 and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016. The 

application is therefore recommended for conditional approval. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme and results of soakage tests 

carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three tests should be carried out for 

each soakage pit as per BRE 365 with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for 

design. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 

the first occupation of the development hereby approved. Development shall not take place 

until an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is 

not exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National 

Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface water design is not agreed 

before works commence, it could result in abortive works being carried out on site or alterations to 

the approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not occur. 

 

Page 53



4. The external walls and roofs of the building hereby approved shall be constructed with dark 

green profiled steel cladding, a sample of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority before the erection external walls. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

5. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character of 

the area. 

 

6. Within three months of the building hereby approved first coming into use, all buildings, 

structures or other chattels shown to be demolished on the Block Plan Proposed received by 

the Local Planning Authority on 08.04.2024 shall have been removed from the site in their 

entirety.  

 

REASON: In order to safeguard the character and appearance of the area.  

 

7. The use of the building hereby approved shall remain ancillary to the existing lawful use of the 

land as an airfield and shall not be used for any other purpose whatsoever.  

 

REASON: The proposal is only suitable for the development specified because of the special 

circumstances of the site. 

 

8. The building hereby approved shall not be used to operate an air ground communication 

service.  

 

REASON: In the interests of aviation safety.  

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable Drainage 

Techniques in order to ensure compliance with: 

 

• Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1)) 

•  Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in sustainable home building practice 

• Oxfordshire County Council's Local standards and guidance for surface water drainage on major 

development in Oxfordshire (V1.2 December 2021) 

•  The local flood risk management strategy published by Oxfordshire County Council 2015 - 

2020  as per the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1)) 

• CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015 

 

 

Page 54



• The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, produced by 

the Environment Agency in July 2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. 

 

• Updated Planning Practice Guidance on Flood Risk and Coastal Change, published on 25th 

August 2022 by the Environment Agency - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-

change.    

 

• Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015) 

 

 

• Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015) 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 14th May 2024 

Page 55



 

Application Number 24/00890/FUL 

Site Address Stonesfield Sports And Social Club 

Field Close 

Stonesfield 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8EF  
Date 14th May 2024 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Stonesfield Parish Council 

Grid Reference 439542 E       217582 N 

Committee Date 28th May 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of 6 no. lighting columns with 6 no. floodlighting luminaires with associated works. 

 

Page 56



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Tacon 

Field Close 

Stonesfield 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8HA 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council No Comment Received.  
 

Env Health Contamination Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application in 

relation to contaminated land and potential risk to human health.  

 

I have no objection in relation to land contamination human health 

risks from this proposed development and will not be requesting 

planning conditions.  

 

I have mentioned the application to my colleagues who consider 

lighting, please ensure their comments are considered in the 

application.   
 

WODC - Sports No Comment Received.  
 

Sport England South East As part of our assessment, we have consulted with the Lawn Tennis 

Association. They have confirmed that they are supportive of the 

proposal and pointed out that they have submitted a letter of support 

as part of the application. We note the comments made by the LTA 

on the greater number of hours which will be made available, for 

playing tennis, if this application is successful. We believe this is in line 

with the vision of the current Local Plan, as it will be creating more 

opportunities for Stonesfield and Tackley for being a health 

community, thus meeting objectives CO9 and CO12, as well as Local 

Plan Policy E5: Local Services and Community Facilities. We note the 

lighting columns are not located on the playing fields or will have a 

detrimental impact on the playing fields.Given the above, Sport 

England raises no objection to the application because it is considered 

to accord with exception 2 of our Playing Fields Policy and paragraph 

103 of the NPPF.   
 

District Ecologist I have reviewed the above application, linked to refused application 

23/02653/FUL. As with previous comments, as there are currently 

floodlights present on site that will be illuminating areas of hedgerow 

and treelines surrounding the courts, it is felt that in this instance, the 

use of new floodlights would not result in any adverse impacts on 

nocturnal wildlife using the site, and I therefore have no further 

comments to make.  
 

  

Page 57



2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 A single comment against the scheme has been received from a nearby resident that states:  

 

'We have recently noticed illumination at night from ( we believe) the Stonesfield playing fields / 

tennis courts. Lights are visibly bright from the Woodstock Road in Stonesfield. There appears to be 

some excessively high and bright lighting posts erected to illuminate sports at night. We are not 

aware that any permission has been granted and question why they are so high. The light emitted is 

intense and does not appear to be focussed towards the ground, significant light loss sideways is 

illuminating the sky. If courts are to be lit, we would hope that the posts are lower and the light 

more controlled. Excessive light impacts wildlife and Stonesfield is a dark skies area.' 

 

3 APPLICANTS CASE 

 

3.1 The application includes a Planning, Design and Access Statement, the main points of which are 

summarised below.  

 

3.2 'Following the refusal of the previous scheme by the planning committee, the lighting strategy has 

been reviewed and the design amended to address the issues raised by council members. A Spillage 

Impact Report has also been submitted to cover the issues in more detail. 

 

3.3 Stonesfield Tennis Club is located on the eastern side Stonesfield and forms part of the Stonesfield 

Sports and Social Club. The tennis courts are located at the north-eastern end of the playing fields, 

where there are also football and cricket facilities. The existing facility comprises 2no tennis courts 

owned and operated by Stonesfield Tennis Club and an adjacent multi-use games area (MUGA) 

owned and operated Stonesfield Playing Field Association CIO the freehold owners of the entire 

playing field. The site is located within the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

3.4 The proposed lighting system features 6 metre high lighting columns, lowering the height by 2m on 

the original scheme. This creates a far more pleasant playing experience for the end user, is 

compliant to LTA lighting criteria, whilst minimising Light spill to the surrounding area. In addition the 

colour of the lighting has been changed from a neutral to a warm white at the recommendation of 

the consultant ecologist. The state of the art Philips Internal Integral Louvre technology has been 

implemented into the Lighting design to ensure the lighting cut off is at maximum effect. The 

submission includes some information, including photos of similar installations to demonstrate the 

control of light spillage possible. 

 

3.5 The size of the club with approx. 40 adult members and 50 families means the Lawn Tennis 

Association have recommended that the courts are floodlit. Currently from mid-September to end of 

March the courts are only usable in the day. Members with full time jobs are therefore only able to 

use the facilities at the weekend. Lights will significantly increase the availability of the courts for 

members during the Winter months. The courts have an all-weather Astro-Turf surface which has 

proven to be playable in virtually all weather conditions and day-time tennis continues to be played 

throughout the winter months. 

 

3.6 The floodlights are proposed to be used on weeknight and weekend evenings when required from 

dusk until 10pm and in winter month mornings from 7am when required. 

 

3.7 To address the issues raised at the previous planning committee meeting, the following changes have 

been made to the design: 1. The height of the floodlights has been lowered with 8m high columns 

Page 58



being reduced to 6m high. 2. The new lighting columns will be a slender diameter and coloured 

green, enabling them to blend in with the surrounding landscape as much as possible during the day. 

3. The colour of the lighting, following the recommendations of the ecologist has been changed from 

'Neutral White' to 'Warm White' 3000K, which will be more ecologically friendly. 4. The lighting 

report and light spillage drawings have taken into account the nearest residential dwellings and 

demonstrates that the light spillage from the installation will not reach these properties with a lux 

level of less than 1 and glare comfortably below the requirements set out in the ILP guidance. 

 

3.8 The replacement flood lighting will assist in the accessibility of the site in terms of a significant 

improvement in the functionality of the facility. This will benefit players and spectators and the 

visually impaired as well as the able-bodied. The system has a safe egress feature in which a single 

fitting stays on for an extra 5 minutes so that the courts can be safely exited in the dark. There is a 

bus stop approx. half a mile from the courts. Members typically walk or cycle to the club if they live 

in the village. Those from further afield tend to drive. 

 

3.9 The proposed lighting is discretely located and has been designed to minimise its impact. The lighting 

design has been carefully considered to avoid obtrusive light spillage. As such the means of lighting is 

appropriate, unobtrusively located and does not result in excessive levels of light. The scheme has 

been amended to address concerns raised by members in regard to the previous submission. The 

lighting will not have a detrimental impact on the local amenity, character of the settlement or wider 

countryside.' 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E5NEW Local services and community facilities 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background  

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the erection of 6 no. lighting columns with 6 no. floodlighting 

luminaires with associated works at Stonesfield Sports and Social Club, Field Close, Stonesfield.  

 

5.2 The application site comprises the western two of three existing hard surfaced tennis courts at 

Stonesfield Sports and Social Club as well as associated access and parking, which would be 

unaffected by the proposal. The courts lie in the eastern portion of the recreation ground and are 

partially enclosed by a bund and planting.  

 

5.3 The application site lies within the Cotswolds National Landscape ('CNL').  

 

5.4 The application follows the refusal of application ref. 23/02653/FUL at this Committee in February 

2024.  

Page 59



  

Relevant Planning History  

 

W81/0466- Construction of 2 hard tennis courts and netting surround. 

W96/0202- Construct extension to existing tennis courts to form third court with chain link fence. 

23/02653/FUL- Erection of 6 no. lighting columns with 6 no. floodlighting luminaires with associated 

works. Refused on the grounds of landscape impact due to light pollution.  

 

Changes made following the refusal of 23/02653/FUL 

 

5.5 The following design changes have been made in order to address the concerns of Members:  

 

• Column height reduced from 8m to 6m; 

• Columns to reduced in diameter and to be stained in green;  

• Colour and intensity of lighting reduced from 4000 Kelvin (neutral white) to 3000 Kelvin (warm 

white); and  

• Lighting report amened to demonstrate no light spill to nearby properties 

 

Development Plan 

 

5.6 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the 

local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as material 

to the application, and to any other material considerations. In this case, the development plan is the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 ('WOLP'). 

 

National Policy/Guidance 

 

5.7 The National Planning Policy Framework ('NPPF') sets out the Government's planning policies and 

how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF advices that the purpose of the planning system is 

to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and sets out that there are three 

dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In essence, the 

economic role should contribute to building a strong, responsive and competitive economy; the 

social role should support strong, vibrant and healthy communities; and the environmental role 

should contribute to protecting and enhancing the natural, built and historic environment. These 

roles should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are mutually dependant.  

 

5.8 At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development and paragraph 11 

advices that for decision-making this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-

to-date development plan without delay.  

 

5.9 Section 8 of the NPPF relates to 'promoting healthy and safe communities' and outlines at paragraph 

96 that: 

 

'Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places and beautiful 

buildings which:  

 

(c)  enable and support healthy lifestyles, especially where this would address identified local health 

and well-being needs - for example through the provision of safe and accessible green 

Page 60



infrastructure, sports facilities, local shops, access to healthier food, allotments and layouts that 

encourage walking and cycling.' 

 

5.10 The NPPF continues at paragraph 97 that:  

 

'To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning 

policies and decisions should:  

 

a) plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such as local 

shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of 

worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential 

environments;  

 

b) take into account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social and 

cultural well-being for all sections of the community;  

 

c) guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this would 

reduce the community's ability to meet its day-to-day needs;  

 

d) ensure that established shops, facilities and services are able to develop and modernise, and are 

retained for the benefit of the community'. 

 

5.11 Paragraph 102 outlines that 'access to a network of high quality open spaces and opportunities for 

sport and physical activity is important for the health and well-being of communities', paragraph 103 

seeks to resists the loss of open space, sports and recreational buildings and land. Paragraph 103 sets 

out that 'existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing fields, 

should not be built on' other than in an exhaustive list of circumstances. In this case, officers do not 

consider that the proposal would result in the loss of recreational land.  

 

5.12 Section 15 (conserving and enhancing the natural environment) is also directly relevant in this case. 

Paragraph 180 outlines that 'planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the 

natural and local environment', with paragraph 182 stating:  

 

'Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National 

Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of 

protection in relation to these issues'. 

 

5.13 Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the representations 

of interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations for the application 

are: 

 

• Principle; 

• Landscape and Visual Impact; 

• Ecology  

 

5.14 Each will be considered in the following sections of this report. 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

Principle 

 

5.15 WOLP Policy OS2 sets out the general spatial strategy in the District and identifies a hierarchy of 

settlements for new development, which seeks to steer a significant proportion of future 

development in the 'main service centres' of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton. It takes a 

hierarchical approach as set out in table 4b, which categories Stonesfield as a 'village' which: 

 

'Are suitable for limited development which respects the village character and local distinctiveness 

and would help to maintain the vitality of these communities.' 

 

5.16 All applications are expected to comply with the general principles of OS2 notable in this case are 

that development should:  

 

• As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

• Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting 

services and facilities; 

• Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; and  

• In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty. 

 

5.17 Policy E5 states:  

 

'The Council will support the development and retention of local services and community facilities to 

meet local needs and to promote social wellbeing, interests, interaction and healthy inclusive 

communities.' 

 

5.18 The supporting text to Policy E5 confirms that outdoor sports and leisure facilities should be 

regarded as 'essential local services' (paragraph 6.65).  

 

5.19 The proposal would enable year-round use of the existing courts, which officers consider would 

represent the development of a local service in accordance with Policy E5. The proposal has drawn 

the support of the Lawn Tennis Association, who have identified that the proposal would lead to 

1,728 extra court hours for tennis per annum, an increase of around 25% compared to unlit courts. 

This increase is especially significant for working adults or school age juniors, who are more reliant 

on evening availability. The proposal would therefore lead to a significant increase in the ability of the 

facility to provide more opportunities for local people to maintain healthy and active lifestyles. 

Officers therefore consider that the provision of floodlighting to support the established use of the 

site as a sports club adjacent to the village would represent limited development to help maintain the 

vitality of village services.  

 

Landscape and Visual Impact 

 

5.20 The site lies within the CNL, a nationally important designation, where great weight should be 

given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty.  This duty is reflected in Policy EH1 

of the WOLP and the NPPF which require great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Section 245 (Protected Landscapes) of the 

LURA 2023 now places a duty on relevant authorities in exercising or performing any functions in 

relation to, or so as to affect, land in an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, to seek to further the 

statutory purposes of the area. The Cotswolds Conservation Board understand that Natural England 

Page 62



will shortly publish interim guidance on the application of this change in the statutory duty on 

relevant authorities, which came into effect on 26 December 2023.  The Cotswolds Conservation 

Board's Management Plan and guidance documents are also material considerations in decision 

making relevant to the CNL. 

 

5.21 The CNL Management Plan 2023-2025 ('the MP') recognises that 'light pollution' of the night sky is 

an intrusion into the countryside at night, which can have harmful effects on the health of people and 

wildlife. Policy CE5 of the MP states that 'proposals that are likely to impact on the dark skies of the 

Cotswolds National Landscape should have regard to these dark skies, by seeking to avoid and 

where avoiding is not possible, minimise light pollution... proposals that are likely to impact on the 

dark skies of the CNL should have regard to recognised standards and guidance, in particular, that 

published by the Institution of Lighting Professionals and the Commission for Dark Skies.' 

 

5.22 In addition, Policy OS4 is relevant and outlines that:  

 

'High design quality is central to the strategy for West Oxfordshire. New development should 

respect the historic, architectural and landscape character of the locality'.  

 

5.23 WOLP Policy EH8 (environmental protection) must also be considered with regard to the 

proposed floodlighting, it sets out in relation to artificial light:  

 

'The installation of external lighting and lighting proposals for new buildings, particularly those in 

remote rural locations, will only be permitted where:  

 

• the means of lighting is appropriate, unobtrusively sited and would not result in excessive levels 

of light;  

• the elevations of buildings, particularly roofs, are designed to limit light spill;  

• the proposal would not have a detrimental effect on local amenity, character of a settlement or 

wider countryside, intrinsically dark landscapes or nature conservation.' 

  

5.24 The application site is located at the eastern end of the wider recreation ground and is bounded on 

three sides (north, east and west) by bunding and mature screening vegetation, with a further strong 

belt of planting running to the south and east of the site. To the north of the site lies 'North Farm', a 

farm complex comprising large farmhouse, yard and agricultural buildings, with the built up area of 

the village lying to the north west, west and south west. To the east of the site lies open countryside. 

Approximately 40m south of the courts (but within the wider recreation ground) a 15m telecoms 

pole is sited.  

 

5.25 The proposed floodlighting has been amended in comparison to the recently refused scheme to 

reduce the height of the columns to 6m, reduce the lighting intensity from 4000 Kelvin to 3000 

Kelvin, as well as employing a softer, warm lighting colour. An integrated louvre system has been 

employed, which when combined with the proposed design amendments as set out, would 

significantly reduce light spill compared to the refused scheme, as demonstrated in the submitted 

light spillage plans. The revised slimmer, stained columns would also reduce the visual impact of the 

floodlighting in daylight hours and assimilate the columns into the context provided by existing 

vegetation.  

 

5.26 Therefore, officers consider that the proposed design has demonstrated that appropriate measures 

would be undertaken to ensure that light spillage as a result of the installation would be minimised 

through the reduced height of the columns, reduction in illumination intensity, use of softer colour 

Page 63



and use of louvres. The proposal would lead to the introduction of additional artificial light in the 

area. However, the lighting would be read in the context of the existing sporting/recreation facility 

and would be contained to a highly localised impact upon landscape character, due to the strong 

landscape structure provided by existing vegetation, topography of the area, context of existing 

development and considered design approach as set out above. As such, officers conclude that the 

proposed floodlighting would not be prominent in long views nor would result in a significant adverse 

impact upon landscape character or dark skies in the CNL. Therefore, subject to the planning 

conditions set out in Section 6, the application has demonstrated that landscape and visual effects 

have been minimised as a result of the siting and revised design of the proposals, and would not 

adversely affect landscape and scenic beauty in the CNL nor the setting of the settlement. The 

proposal is therefore considered to accord with MP Policy CE5 and WOLP Policies OS4, EH1 and 

EH8.   

 

Ecological Impact 

 

5.27 Policy EH3 relates to biodiversity and geodiversity and states:  

 

'The biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to achieve an overall net gain 

in biodiversity and minimise impacts on geodiversity'. 

 

5.28 The application has been subject to consultation with the Local Planning Authority's Biodiversity 

Officer. Whilst the application site does not contain any existing lighting, correspondence with the 

applicant indicates that the wider recreation ground has been served by floodlighting serving the 

adjacent football ground for up to 30 years and as a result, the Biodiversity Officer has indicated that 

areas of hedgerow and treelines surrounding the courts would have been previously illuminated by 

artificial lighting and as such, the application would not result in any adverse impacts on nocturnal 

wildlife using the site. Officers also note that the proposal has reduced lighting intensity compared to 

the previous scheme. As a result, a neutral biodiversity impact is identified.  

 

Planning Balance and Recommendation 

 

5.29 The application would result in a material improvement to the accessibility and availability of 

recreation facilities in the village, in accordance with WOLP Polices OS2 and E5 as well as Section 8 

of the NPPF. The existing club is comprised of around 40 adult members with 50 family memberships 

and the representations of interested parties indicates that during winter months, the facility is not 

available for many working members, other than on weekends, due to light conditions. The proposal 

would therefore materially improve the provision of local services and facilities within the village, 

which officers consider should weight strongly in favour of the application given the local and national 

policy provisions as set out above. The Lawn Tennis Association and Sport England have offered 

support for the application, and quantified the increase in playable hours of around 25% overall, and 

significantly higher amongst working adults and school pupils. In addition, officers are satisfied that 

the location, revised design and strong screening of the proposed floodlighting would ensure that the 

increase in artificial lighting would be well contained to the application site, which clearly displays the 

characteristics of a sports facility. In light of this assessment, the proposal is considered to accord 

with West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Policies OS1, OS2, OS4, E5, EH1, EH3 and EH8 and the 

NPPF 2023. The application is therefore recommended for conditional approval.  

 

 

 

 

Page 64



 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The floodlights hereby permitted shall not be used outside the following times: 0700 hours to 

2200 hours Monday to Saturday and 0800 hours to 2100 hours on Sundays. 

 

REASON: In order to protect local landscape character and prevent unnecessary electricity usage. 

 

4. The floodlights hereby approved shall not have an intensity greater than 3000 Kelvin at any time 

and shall be installed and retained in the colour as specified in the application ('Warm White'). 

 

REASON: In order to protect local landscape character. 

 

5. The floodlights hereby approved shall not be used until they have been painted or otherwise 

finished externally in a dark green colour or as otherwise approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: In order to protect local landscape character. 

 

6. The floodlights hereby approved shall not be used until they have been fitted with a system to 

ensure that they are automatically switched off if there has been no use of the tennis court they 

primarily light for a period of ten minutes or more. 

 

REASON: In order to protect local landscape character. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 14th May 2024 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and date of 

Committee 

Uplands Area Planning Sub committee  –  28th May 2024 

Subject Allocation of Section 106 funding in Long Hanborough, Oxon 

Wards affected Long Hanborough 

Accountable member Julian Cooper - Chair of Upland sub committee 

Email:  julian.cooper@westoxon.gov.uk  

Accountable officer 

 
Charlie Jackson - Assistant Director 

Email: charlie.jackson@westoxon.gov.uk  

Report author Phil Shaw -  Business Manager Development and Sustainability 

Email: phil.shaw@westoxon.gov.uk  

Summary/Purpose To enable members to consider competing requests for a sum of money 

reserved in the section 106 agreement associated with application ref   

22/01330/OUT and to decide which request best mitigates the impact of 

the development and to allocate the said 106 monies accordingly.  

Annexes None 

Recommendation(s) That the sub committee resolves to: 

1. Allocate the funding to whichever of the two claimants it 

considers best mitigates the impact of the development. 

Corporate priorities  Putting Residents First 

 A Good Quality of Life for All 

 A Better Environment for People and Wildlife 

 Working Together for West Oxfordshire  

Key Decision No 

Exempt No 

Consultees/ 

Consultation  

Full consultation was undertaken in respect of the original application. 

Consultation with the PC, the Ward Member and the Leisure team has 

been undertaken in preparing this report. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

mailto:%20julian.cooper@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 When an outline planning application for the construction of up to 150 dwellings was 

approved on Land North of Witney Road in Long Hanborough (ref 22/01330/OUT) 

WODC Leisure Services requested a sum of money to seek to implement the approved 

Playing Pitch Strategy for the village. Separately the Parish Council did not initially engage in 

negotiating mitigation requests as they were seeking to persuade the District to refuse 

planning permission. At the point it became clear that officers were recommending the 

approval of the application the Parish Council pointed out that the allocation of s106 funding 

had no direct impact on Hanborough Parish – it was going to broader projects across the 

district. HPC therefore requested at the Planning committee meeting that s106 funding 

should be reviewed so that it benefitted the people of Hanborough more directly. Members 

resolved that notwithstanding that the heads of terms and quantum of funding had already 

been agreed, that officers should have delegated authority to seek to address their requests 

if possible. Separately HPC met with the applicants, Pye and agreed the outdoor pitch 

provision to include ‘outdoor pitch provision and community facilities in Long Hanborough’. 

Pye/Blenheim were supportive of this funding potentially going to the hub. HPC also agreed 

as part of their negotiations that a separate sum was reserved for the community hub alone, 

conditional on legal agreements being concluded in a ’prompt’ way (so by Christmas 2022) 

which was achieved The legal agreement was framed accordingly. 

1.2 The PC believe that the phrase amendment means that the “mixed” sum should be allocated 

to the community hub and can only be spent in Long Hanborough. Leisure Services consider 

it should be spent as per the adopted Playing Pitch Strategy. Both cannot have all of the 

money and so a choice needs to be made. In that the sub committee were the decision 

makers who balanced the planning merits of the application (including the associated 

mitigation package) it has been decided that the most appropriate way to resolve this 

matter is for the sub committee to now arbitrate as to which of the competing funding 

requests they wish to support. i.e., almost as if the choice had been required to be made 

BEFORE determination of the application as to where the funding should be spent.  

1.3 Officers have thus been in negotiation with representatives of HPC and the Leisure team 

asking them to set out their case so that Members can make a fully informed decision. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 When the application was considered Leisure Services were one of the consultees. Officers 

also tried to engage with the PC, but for the reasons outlined above they were not willing 

to discuss as they wished the scheme to be refused.  Leisure Services requested a 

contribution towards Sports Hall, Swimming Pool and Outdoor pitch provision, which was 

supported with strategic evidence. The request, in regards to the latter was as follows:  

Page 68



 
 
 
 

2.1.1 After reviewing this application, in line with […] the draft Playing Pitch Strategy (due for 

adoption Autumn 2022), should this proposal be granted planning permission then the 

Council would require an off site contribution towards leisure facilities in the catchment 

area.  

 

2.1.2 150 new homes in the LA area is estimated to generate a population of 360 people (using 

the average household size for the area of 2.4). 

 

Outdoor pitch provision 

2.1.3 Based on the cost of provision and future maintenance of football pitches (the cheapest 

form of outdoor sports facility) over a 15-year period at the Fields in Trust standard of 

1.6ha per 1,000 population. 

 

2.1.4 A football pitch of 0.742ha, a provision cost of £105,000 (Sport England Facility Costs first 

Quarter 2022) and a commuted maintenance cost of £240,975 per pitch (Sport England 

Life Cycle Costings Natural Turf Pitches second Quarter 2021), would equate to £746,038 

per 1,000 population or £1,790 per dwelling (at an average occupancy of 2.4 persons per 

dwelling). 

 

2.1.5 Based on Sport England Facility costs and lifecycle costings the cost for providing the 

required playing pitch provision is £268,500. 

 

2.2 When questioned as to the need to continue to apply the monies as originally sought the 

Leisure Team have responded as follows:  

 

2.2.1 ‘The Leisure team had requested the s106 contribution based on the needs and evidence 

highlighted in the Playing Pitch Strategy, which was adopted by the Executive and also 

included appointment of a post to deliver the strategy. If we are not able to use the s106 

money that we secure for outdoor pitches, we will never be able to deliver the action plan 

set out in the Playing Pitch Strategy and won’t achieve the outcomes the Executive have 

committed to.’ 

 

2.3 The Council has collected £790,774.76 for leisure purposes from various developments in 

Long Hanborough since 2014. All of the remaining funds (£621,692.55) have been allocated 

to the Hub project. This does not include the separate Long Hanborough Hub Contribution 

(£200,000) and Outdoor Pitch Contribution (£268,500) from the application which this 

report relates to, as those funds have not been collected yet. There are therefore no other 

funds available to the Council to deliver the Playing Pitch Strategy. 

 

 

Page 69



 
 
 
 
 

 

2.4 To set against this position set out by the leisure team the PC make the following points: 

 

• “We raised the matter of not enough s106 funding specifically for Hanborough at 

the Uplands Planning sub-committee meeting. 

• WODC councillors agreed that the s106 funding should ‘benefit the local 

community’ and HPC should be given chance to discuss this with Pye/Blenheim as 

part of the legal agreement. 

 We met with Pye and amended the pitch provision to a much more specific and 

Hanborough related issue. Pye/Blenheim were very clear in their support of this 

funding going to the hub – in an email on 16th Dec 2022 to Stephanie Eldridge, 

Ashley Maltman wrote:  

 

‘In previous exchanges we have requested clarity form WODC that the existing 

contributions can be directed to the Hub project. It was agreed that it would be appropriate 

for the ‘outdoor pitch’ provision to be explicitly amended to ‘Outdoor pitch provision and 

community facilities in Long Hanborough’ so that certainty can be provided that such 

funding can be directed to the Parish Council’s Hub project. We understand the Parish have 

consistently received funding via the District Council from other S106s and see no reason 

why this should change from the existing s106 pot.’ 

 

• This was acknowledged by WODC Planning team 

• This was put into the s106 agreement and signed by all parties. 

• This £268k (index linked so closer to £300k) is the ‘missing piece’ of our funding 

for the Hanborough Hub/Pavilion extension – we have a public information 

session …… and then we will apply for planning permission shortly afterwards”. 

 

2.5 An additional impact of any decision to allocate monies to the HPC’s Community Hub 

project would be that it would be difficult for the Leisure Team to request monies for 

outdoor sports provision from future developments in Long Hanborough. As there would 

be no (or at least a reduced) need for additional funds if the current funds had been used to 

deliver the strategy as per the Leisure Team’s original request, developers can argue that 

any further requests would not pass the legal tests for S106 contributions. HPC are aware 

of this potential issue but are content that they in effect have control over all relevant 

leisure facilities in Long Hanborough and so it will not disadvantage any third-party leisure 

providers.  

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

Page 70



 
 
 
 

3.1 Members could decide not to allocate the monies but if that were the case it would need to 

be returned to the developer with interest and necessary mitigation for the impacts of the 

development would not have been achieved. 

3.2 The monies could be split between the parties, but this is likely to leave both of them short 

on the funding necessary to complete either task in full. 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

4.1 This is a tricky situation that has arisen as a result of seeking to facilitate the PC request 

beyond the point that the rest of the S106 had been negotiated. We are however where we 

are and there are two parties who can legitimately lay claim to the funding - but only enough 

funding to provide for one of them. Section 106 money is not a tax on development but 

rather, in order to meet the relevant tests, must be necessary mitigation to assist in 

offsetting harm caused by any particular development. When requests are made before a 

resolution is reached where there are viability issues the subcommittee essentially has to 

decide which matters to include and which to exclude. That is the task that is now before 

members - albeit it is happening at a far later stage in the process. Your Officers are satisfied 

that both claims meet the relevant legal and other tests and would provide mitigation and so 

it essentially becomes a political/practical decision as to which one Members consider best 

meets the needs of the village and can best mitigate the impact of the development.  

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Section 106 monies are funding provided by developers and as such there is no direct 

impact upon the Council finances. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 None arising from this report. 

7. RISK ASSESSMENT 

7.1 The risks are set out in the above report. 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

8.1 Under equality legislation, the Council has a legal duty to pay ‘due regard’ to the need to 

eliminate discrimination and promote equality in relation to:  

 Race 

 Disability 

 Gender, including gender reassignment  

 Age  

 Sexual Orientation  

 Pregnancy and maternity  

 Religion or belief 

Page 71



 
 
 
 

8.2 The Council also has a duty to foster good relations, and to consider the impact of its 

decisions on human rights. The law requires that this duty to pay ‘due regard’ is 

demonstrated in the decision making process. The report does not have  a particular impact 

on any of the above groups. 

 

 

9. CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 None 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1 Application reference 22/01330/OUT and associated papers. 

Page 72



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 8th May 2024  

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  23/02055/CND Burford REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of Conditions 6 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities) and 7 

(details of external lighting) of Planning Permission 21/01607/HHD 

Cartref Barns Lane Burford 

Mr and Mrs Turner 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



DELGAT 
 

2.  23/02939/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Conversion and extension of agricultural barns to provide 3 dwellings with associated access, 

landscaping and demolition works (amended plans) 

Asterleigh Farm Over Kiddington Woodstock 

Mr Matthew Fielden 

 

 

3.  23/02940/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Conversion and extension of agricultural barns to provide 3 dwellings with associated access, 

landscaping and demolition works (amended plans) 

Asterleigh Farm Over Kiddington Woodstock 

Mr Matthew Fielden 

 

 

4.  23/03241/CLE Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

WDN 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (retention of a dwelling house use and detached garage building) 

Chalford Paddocks  Oxford Road Old Chalford 

Mr James George 

 

 

5.  23/03283/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use of basement and ground floors from office to residential, creating four 2 bed 

flats and one 1 bed flat, along with associated works (amended plans) 

The Old Post Office  13 West Street Chipping Norton 

Mr and Mrs Chalk 

 

 

6.  23/03365/FUL Charlbury and Finstock REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 4no. chimney fan extraction units and associated works. (Retrospective). 

Bell Hotel Church Street Charlbury 

The Bell 

 

 

7.  23/03366/LBC Charlbury and Finstock REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 4 no. chimney fan extraction units and associated works. (Retrospective). 

Bell Hotel Church Street Charlbury 

The Bell 

 

 

Page 74



DELGAT 
 

8.  23/03375/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of timber pergola 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Mr And Mrs Vine 

 

 

9.  24/00063/ADV Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of various internally and externally illuminated and non-illuminated signs to the 

exterior of the building (amended plans) 

Bay Tree Hotel  Sheep Street Burford 

Fullers Brewery 

 

 

10.  24/00064/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of various internally and externally illuminated and non-illuminated signs to the 

exterior of the building (amended plans) 

Bay Tree Hotel  Sheep Street Burford 

Fullers Brewery 

 

 

11.  24/00065/ADV Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of various internally and externally illuminated and non-illuminated signs to the 

exterior of the building (amended plans) 

Lamb Inn  Sheep Street Burford 

Fullers Brewery 

 

 

12.  24/00066/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of various externally and internally illuminated and non-illuminated signs to the 

exterior of the building (amended plans) 

Lamb Inn  Sheep Street Burford 

Fullers Brewery 

 

 

13.  24/00067/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations including rebuild dilapidated outbuildings 

Newington House Sheep Street Charlbury 

Mr Ben Cottam 

 

 

Page 75



DELGAT 
 

14.  24/00068/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations including rebuild dilapidated outbuildings 

Newington House Sheep Street Charlbury 

Mr Ben Cottam 

 

 

15.  24/00077/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Single storey rear extension to replace and square off existing conservatory 

31 The Sands Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Richard Fox 

 

 

16.  24/00095/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Installation of new pre-fabricated classroom to the rear of the property. (amended 

description) 

Windrush Valley School 2 London Lane Ascott Under Wychwood 

Windrush Valley School Ltd 

 

 

17.  24/00111/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of single storey side extension, new garage and detached outbuilding. (amended 

plans) 

Walnut Cottage High Street Fifield 

Mr And Mrs H Taylor 

 

 

18.  24/00128/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of part of the existing garage to living space, enlarge front dormer, install ground 

floor side glazed folding doors, add side and rear rooflights and fit air source heat pump 

Stone Court 3 Langston Close Churchill 

Mr And Mrs Charles Wilson 

 

 

19.  24/00146/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single and two storey rear extensions, construction of a dormer window on 

existing north roof slope and installation of a roof light to south roof slope 

The Cottage 28 Lower End Leafield 

Mr Anthony O'Connor 

 

 

Page 76



DELGAT 
 

20.  24/00149/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of ground mounted solar PV array (40no. panels) with associated infrastructure. 

Lower Dornford Farm Wootton Woodstock 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

21.  24/00150/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey rear extension, garage conversion and addition of bay window to the 

front elevation 

34 The Green Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr  and Ms Ali and Eli Ross and Vergara 

 

 

22.  24/00172/FUL Burford REF 

  

Erection of a replacement dwelling and associated works along with construction of a 

detached garden kitchen and a garage with carport (amended plans) 

High Meadow  Westhall Hill Fulbrook 

Mr Shane Sprenger 

 

 

23.  24/00193/CND The Bartons APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (sample panel) and 6 (roof sample) of Planning Permission 

23/02166/HHD 

Grove End Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Keswick 

 

 

24.  24/00196/HHD Chadlington and Churchill REF 

  

Erection of two storey rear and side extension and single storey extension to garage 

5 Ashcroft Close Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Mr Harry Wood 

 

 

25.  24/00203/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey side extension 

Olivers Yard 1 Kethero Close Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Jill Newman-Yates 

 

 

Page 77



DELGAT 
 

26.  24/00213/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed roof lights 

Foxley House High Street Great Rollright 

Mr David Buggee 

 

 

27.  24/00218/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 2 (Specifications and samples of the materials) of Listed Building 

Consent 21/04047/LBC 

Manor Farm  Chapel Hill Wootton 

Oliver Wilson 

 

 

28.  24/00227/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey side extension 

40 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Mr Mark Symonds 

 

 

29.  24/00244/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

To upgrade of a short section of the existing FP133 9/10 (part of the long distance 

Shakespeares Way), which is currently grassed with a new surface of CEDEC, self binding 

Amber Footpath Gravel bounded with timber 

Footpath East Of The Cowyards Oxford Road Woodstock 

Miss Aimee-Anna Akinola 

 

 

30.  24/00252/S73 Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of permission 21/00776/FUL to allow internal and external design 

changes to both proposed dwellings, changes to the site layout including changes to the 

domestic curtilage of plot one 

Vicarage Field Church Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Alex Cade 

 

 

31.  24/00318/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a grain store and associated hardstanding. (Retrospective). 

Dunthrop Farm Heythrop Chipping Norton 

Mr T Coates 

 

 

Page 78



DELGAT 
 

32.  24/00333/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of residential property and stores, and erection of 3no. holiday cottages together 

with provision of off-street parking and associated works. 

Barclays Cozens Lane Kingham 

Daylesford Holiday Cottages Ltd 

 

 

33.  24/00337/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Repair and maintenance works to existing bridge to resolve structural and stonework defects. 

Heythrop Park Hotel  Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

34.  24/00343/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Change of use from D1 Day Nursery to Class E Commercial, Business and Service. Erection 

of a single storey rear extension and a front entrance canopy along with construction of a 

cycle store, rear decking and a solar shading structure.  Alterations to include changes to 

fenestration, external wall insulation, addition of photovoltaic panels, installation of an Air 

Source Heat Pump and associated landscaping works to optimise car parking and additional 

parking (amended description) 

Daffodil House Playgroup 204 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Simon Cole 

 

 

35.  24/00344/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remove existing and install new, larger bay windows and front entrance porch. Demolition of 

existing lean-to and erection of single storey rear extension. 

5 Meadow Lane Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr James Pierce 

 

 

36.  24/00346/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing outbuilding and rear extension. Erection of single storey extension, 

construction of replacement detached double garage and associated works (amended plans) 

Minster Cottage Church Street Charlbury 

Mr and Mrs Fred and Virginia Hadfield 

 

 

Page 79



DELGAT 
 

37.  24/00347/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include removal of existing rear extension and erection of 

single storey extension. Internal alterations to include changes to floor layouts and the 

removal of part of the ceiling on first floor. (amended plans) 

Minster Cottage Church Street Charlbury 

Mr and Mrs Fred and Virginia Hadfield 

 

 

38.  24/00350/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of two storey extension and porch to side elevation of dwelling along with 

construction of three dormer windows to the front roof slope 

Magpie Farm  Enstone Road Heythrop 

Mr And Mrs Sherriff 

 

 

39.  24/00356/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Erection of a pergola 

5 William Buckland Way Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Phill Blundell 

 

 

40.  24/00377/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed widening of French doors in east elevation and installation of two additional 

rooflights in south facing roof. 

3 Chillford Barns Churchill Chipping Norton 

Mrs Nicola Mee 

 

 

41.  24/00366/CND Chadlington and Churchill SPL 

  

APPROVED:-REFUSED:- 

Rynehill Farm Kingham Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs P Ambler 

 

 

42.  24/00370/CND Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 5 (Schedule of Works) of 23/02226/LBC 

Westview House  151 The Hill Burford 

Ms F Watson 

 

 

Page 80



DELGAT 
 

43.  24/00388/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage building to create a self-contained annexe and garaging to serve 2 

Churchill Road with associated works to include formation of a new access (amended 

description). 

2 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Steve Goodway 

 

 

44.  24/00387/CLP Stonesfield and Tackley WDN 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (erection of a single storey side extension) 

2 Rectory Farm Cottages Glympton Woodstock 

Mr R Mills 

 

 

45.  24/00394/CND Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 15 (Precautionary Working Method Statement) and 16 (Biodiversity 

Management and Monitoring Plan) of Planning Permission 22/02472/FUL 

Land At Former Home Close Farm Shilton Road Burford 

Carl Ranscombe 

 

 

46.  24/00436/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a replacement summer house 

Hunters Lodge High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Andrew Spalding 

 

 

47.  24/00399/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of three rooflights in SE facing pitch of the rear extension roof. (Retrospective). 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mrs Michela Hancock 

 

 

48.  24/00400/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to remove existing and install three rooflights in SE facing 

pitch of the rear extension roof. (Retrospective). 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mrs Michela Hancock 

 

 

Page 81



DELGAT 
 

49.  24/00402/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to install one additional first floor window in NE (rear) elevation and replacement 

of windows and doors in rear and side elevations. 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Ms Michela Hancock 

 

 

50.  24/00409/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of two storey and first floor extensions to detached garage to create office above 

(resubmission of 20/02362/HHD) 

Orchard House 2 The Square Church Enstone 

Mr James Scott 

 

 

51.  24/00411/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey extension and installation of two pairs of double doors within the 

western elevation. 

Hollybank Wootton Woodstock 

Mr And Mrs Fairweather 

 

 

52.  24/00412/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include erection of a single storey extension and 

installation of two pairs of double doors within the western elevation. 

Hollybank Wootton Woodstock 

Mr And Mrs Fairweather 

 

 

53.  24/00417/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of a wood burning cookstove in study/dining room and external flue on side gable. 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mrs Allyson Coleman 

 

 

54.  24/00418/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of a wood burning cookstove in study/dining room and external flue on side gable. 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mrs Allyson Coleman 

 

 

Page 82



DELGAT 
 

55.  24/00419/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Strip and relay stone slate roof to staff accommodation. 

Bay Tree Hotel  Sheep Street Burford 

Mr Oliver Pilgerim 

 

 

56.  24/00435/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include demolition of existing entrance porch and erection of single storey 

front extension together with new open sided porch. 

Longmoor Kingham Road Churchill 

Mr Matthew Price 

 

 

57.  24/00444/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 5 (details of nesting opportunities for birds) of Planning Permission 

23/02189/FUL 

St Mary Magdalene Church Park Street Woodstock 

Mr Aidan Salter 

 

 

58.  24/00440/CND The Bartons APP 

  

Discharge of condition 12 (landscaping scheme) of Planning Permission 23/02166/HHD 

Grove End Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Keswick 

 

 

59.  24/00477/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension with roof terrace above. 

High Thatch Park Lane Long Hanborough 

Ms T Sheehan 

 

 

60.  24/00478/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Demolition of existing garage and erection of two storey and single storey side extension. 

Replace flat roof over bay window with pitch roof and construction of new front entrance 

porch. (Amended) 

35 Marlborough Crescent Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr James Coughlan 

 

 

Page 83



DELGAT 
 

61.  24/00490/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Demolition of existing rear conservatory. Erection of a two storey side and single storey rear 

extension. 

10 Cadogan Park Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs C And T Jones 

 

 

62.  24/00496/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Conversion of existing Dutch barn to office with associated works and landscaping of the site. 

Land And Barn North West Of Fifield House The Green Fifield 

 

 

 

63.  24/00499/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use of land to increase the domestic curtilage 

April Cottage Daylesford Road Kingham 

Max Norris 

 

 

64.  24/00501/CLP Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of lawfulness (Insertion of rooflights to rear facing roof slope) 

48 Frethern Close Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Adrian Curtis 

 

 

65.  24/00508/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Removal of existing conservatory and utility room. Erection of single and two storey rear 

extensions, alterations to fenestration and conversion of loft space to create additional living 

area 

4 London Lane Ascott Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Hamilton Gaul 

 

 

66.  24/00534/PART18 Stonesfield and Tackley P2NRQ 

  

Prior Approval under Part 18 of the GPDO for the provision of a permanent footbridge at 

Tackley station. 

Tackley Railway Station Nethercote Road Tackley 

Ms Lisa Bullock 

 

 

Page 84



DELGAT 
 

67.  24/00524/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (Precautionary Working Method Statement for nesting birds) and 7 

(bird enhancement) of permission 23/03081/HHD 

The Old Rectory 20 Church End Great Rollright 

Mr Freeman 

 

 

68.  24/00544/CLP Chipping Norton REF 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Erection of a single storey rear extension) 

38 Over Norton Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Leslie Burton 

 

 

69.  24/00556/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of first floor extension over existing single storey R and D Building to create a new 

plant room with external staircase access and installation of new external plant on a raised 

platform. 

Whiteways Technical Centre Enstone Chipping Norton 

Mr M Cummings 

 

 

70.  24/00568/RES The Bartons APP 

  

Reserved Matters application (appearance, layout and scale) for the erection of a replacement 

detached two-storey dwelling with detached garaging and associated change of use. 

Heath Cottage Farm Worton Road Middle Barton 

Mr I Smith 

 

 

71.  24/00575/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a new storage shed at front of an existing residential property. 

Sunnyside Upper End Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr J Bealby 

 

 

72.  24/00576/HHD Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Demolition of existing garage and erection of single storey side extension (amended) 

Harlyn 145 Wroslyn Road Freeland 

Mr And Mrs Holt 

 

 

Page 85



DELGAT 
 

73.  24/00593/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of an entrance porch and single storey rear side extension to create attached 

outhouse 

22 Brook Hill Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Marchand 

 

 

74.  24/00586/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Repair work to roof, including structural replacement and inclusion of new steel members. 

Replacing Slate with Cotswold stone roof covering. Construction of new roof light. 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Mr and Mrs Vine 

 

 

75.  24/00591/CLP Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (conversion of existing garage to create office with wc and kitchen 

facilities). 

12 Regal Lane Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr Jayson Lyon 

 

 

76.  24/00597/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Change of use of completed building from Bakery (approved 23/05/22 ref 22/00688/FUL) to 

light assembly and storage of ironwork products. 

Land East Of Piggery Over Norton Park Over Norton 

Mr Hughie Powell 

 

 

77.  24/00604/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations including erection of two storey rear extension and single 

storey car port and proposed dormers 

Grey Tiles Sturt Road Charlbury 

Mr Chris Liversedge 

 

 

78.  24/00609/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Demolition of extension and erection of two storey rear extension 

15 Oxford Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Graham Winstone 

 

 

Page 86



DELGAT 
 

79.  24/00619/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed single story front extension, alterations to existing front pergola, windows and 

terrace, minor alterations to rear elevation windows, additional roof lights to front elevation 

and alterations to roof to rear elevation (amended plans) 

Green Bank Dyers Hill Charlbury 

Mr Ajit Shah 

 

 

80.  24/00625/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of condition 7 (details of bat roosting and integrated bird boxes) of Planning 

Permission 23/03317/FUL 

Hill Farm Glympton Woodstock 

Mr R Mills 

 

 

81.  24/00645/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of single storey side extension together with proprietary insulated render system to 

existing external walls and replacement of windows. Alterations to existing access to provide 

additional off street parking space. 

2 New Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr And Mrs Kelly 

 

 

82.  24/00653/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of external windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

23/02706/LBC 

Gables Cottage Hackers Lane Churchill 

Mr & Mrs P Anderson 

 

 

83.  24/00685/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Internal alterations to the sitting room to include the uncovering of an existing well and the 

installation of a toughened glass cover, along with works to remove the modern nib. 

The Lodge Over Norton Park Over Norton 

Ms Hilda Whiting 

 

 

84.  24/00664/CND Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (details of the car parking area) of Planning Permission 22/01768/FUL 

1 Rye Grass Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Robin Needham 

 

 

Page 87



DELGAT 
 

85.  24/00665/CND Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Discharge of conditions 12(Construction Environmental Management Plan) and 14 

(Construction Management Plan) of Planning Permission 22/01768/FUL 

1 Rye Grass Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Robin Needham 

 

 

86.  24/00670/CND Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (details of the cycle parking areas) of Planning Permission 

22/01768/FUL 

1 Rye Grass Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Robin Needham 

 

 

87.  24/00692/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a replacement single storey rear extension, erection of detached car port/garage 

building and provision of a vehicle turning area. (amended plans) 

8 Ball Lane Tackley Kidlington 

Mr Andrew And Mrs Suzette Peake 

 

 

88.  24/00693/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and porch, concrete sectional garage, 

coal/log store and outside toilet. Internal and external alterations to include erection of 

replacement single storey rear extension to dwelling together with internal alterations to 

existing outbuilding. (amended plans) 

8 Ball Lane Tackley Kidlington 

Mr Andrew And Mrs Suzette Peake 

 

 

89.  24/00696/NMA Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single and two storey front extension and conversion of garage to habitable space 

together with associated works (Non material amendment to allow insertion of two roof 

lights) 

Middlecote High Street Stonesfield 

Mr Mee 

 

 

90.  24/00709/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 23/00643/FUL to reduce the size of building 

Dean Mill Dean Chipping Norton 

Mr James Buchan 

 

 

Page 88



DELGAT 
 

91.  24/00718/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 11(external lighting) of planning permission 23/01863/S73. 

Eastfield House The Green Kingham 

S Hanson 

 

 

92.  24/00720/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage and rear extension. Erection of a replacement garage with living 

space above and link to dwelling and erection of a single storey rear extension (amended 

plans) 

Top End Chapel Lane Kingham 

Ross 

 

 

93.  24/00735/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (addition of a rear facing rooflight). 

38 Green Lane Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs G Holmes 

 

 

94.  24/00737/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Change of use of land to allow the siting of storage containers together with associated works 

and parking. 

3 Bankside Hanborough Business Park Long Hanborough 

Mr P Rendell 

 

 

95.  24/00740/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of windows and doors) of Planning Permission 

21/00771/HHD 

26 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Tim Bennett 

 

 

96.  24/00741/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of external windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

21/00772/LBC 

26 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Tim Bennett 

 

 

Page 89



DELGAT 
 

97.  24/00749/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey extension 

Tooleys Charlbury Road Spelsbury 

Mr John Derkach 

 

 

98.  24/00750/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include erection of a single storey extension 

Tooleys Charlbury Road Spelsbury 

Mr John Derkach 

 

 

99.  24/00776/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Erection of detached annexe ancillary to main dwelling 

16 Maple Way Ascott Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Kester Harvey 

 

 

100.  24/00788/S73 Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 16/03529/HHD to allow changes to 

fenestration and doors, alterations to the North porch and omission of approved in-fill 

extension together with associated new cat slide roof above and rooflights. 

Coombe House Taynton Burford 

Ms Tiina Lee 

 

 

101.  24/00813/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of single storey side extension to existing garage. Removal of chimney. 

Under Pinsley 202 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Richard Yeowart 

 

 

102.  24/00799/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (conversion of garage and erection of single storey extension to 

replace existing conservatory). 

21 Mavor Close Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mrs Eleanor Eddison 

 

 

Page 90



DELGAT 
 

103.  24/00807/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 13 (details of all SuDS retention basins) of Planning Permission 

21/00189/FUL 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

C/o agent 

 

 

104.  24/00832/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 10 (Construction Environmental Management Plan (Biodiversity)) and 

12 (Ecological Design Strategy) of Planning Permission 21/00189/FUL 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

C/o agent 

 

 

105.  24/00833/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 9 (Construction Traffic Management Plan) of Planning Permission 

21/00189/FUL 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

C/o agent 

 

 

106.  24/00835/PN56 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

P2NRQ 

  

Permitted development Class MA Change of use of existing commercial premises (Class use 

E) to dwellinghouse (Class use C3). 

The Old Coal Yard Gagingwell Chipping Norton 

Ms B Catling 

 

 

107.  24/00857/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 16 (window and door details) of planning permission 20/01933/FUL. 

Police Station  Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Karl Kropf 

 

 

108.  24/00859/PDET28 Chadlington and Churchill P2NRQ 

  

Construction of an agricultural grain store. 

Curdle Hill Farmhouse Chipping Norton Road Chadlington 

Diddly Squat Farm 

 

 

Page 91



DELGAT 
 

109.  24/00880/PIP Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

  

Permission in principle for the construction of one single storey two bedroom stone dwelling 

Land Parcel South East Of Manor Field Church Enstone Oxfordshire 

Mrs Caroline Hicks 

 

 

110.  24/00894/PDET28 Charlbury and Finstock P1REQ 

  

New grain store measuring 36m x 24m with a 0.5m concrete lip on all sides. 

Land Parcel At E436886 N217833 Charlbury Road Fawler 

Mr Michael Green 

 

 

111.  24/00895/NMA Ascott and Shipton WDN 

  

Removal of existing garaging and realignment of driveway. Erection of a two storey 

replacement building to provide undercroft parking with a self contained unit above (non-

material amendment to allow alterations to approved design including changes to NE 

elevational treatment and provision of 4 covered parking spaces with 2 bed accommodation 

above in place of 1 bed). 

Coldwell Brook 52 Shipton Road Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs D Robinson 

 

 

112.  24/00988/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 3 (detailed plans) of Listed Building Consent 23/00462/LBC 

Rose Cottage Church Enstone Chipping Norton 

N. Roda 

 

 

113.  24/00997/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 12 (traffic management plan) of Planning Permission 21/00985/FUL 

The Old Bank 16 Market Place Chipping Norton 

Mr Philip Sharman 

 

 

114.  24/01224/PN56 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing barn to create one dwelling. 

Land North Of Hook Norton Road Swerford 

Mr J Napier 

 

 

 

Page 92



Appeal Decisions 

 

APP/D3125/D/24/3336568 

Lower Turnpike Cottage, Rayford Lane, Middle Barton, OX7 7DD 

The development proposed is construction of new frontage hardstanding and vehicular crossover 

(drop kerb) and associated infrastructure. 

The appeal is dismissed.  

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3332089 

Land West of London Lane, Ascott under Wychwood, OX7 6AB 

The development proposed is outline planning application with all matters reserved (except for 

access) for the development of up to 40 residential dwellings (C3 use), including 50% affordable 

housing, with vehicular access from London Lane. Provision of associated public open space, 

alongside landscaping, drainage infrastructure, and associated works. 

The appeal is dismissed.  

 

APP/D3125/Y/23/3315927 &  APP/D3125/W/23/3315925 

Freeland Methodist Church, Wroslyn Road, Freeland, OX29 8AQ 

The development proposed is the conversion of Methodist Church (F1) to form a single dwelling, 

with associated works. 

Both appeals are dismissed.  

 

APP/D3125/W/22/3313678 

Land at Chapel Lane, Enstone, OX7 4NA 

The development proposed is residential development (up to 8 dwellings), access, parking, public 

open space, landscaping and associated development infrastructure. 

Appeal Allowed.  

Page 93

Agenda Item 8

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3336568&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3332089&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3315927&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3315925&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3313678&CoID=0https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3313678&CoID=0


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Applications for Development
	6 Allocation of Section 106 funding in Long Hanborough, Oxfordshire
	7 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers.
	8 Appeal Decisions Report

